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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Revenue
Gross profit
Profit before income tax expense

Profit for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share
(HK cents)

g 593.4
EF 51.7
B BT 1S F5 S A v ) 24.8
FREF 20.9
FREARREERT

(B 2.6

581.0
53.2
22.6

18.2

21%
(2.7)%
9.7%

14.7%

13.0%

Total assets

Total bank borrowings
Shareholders’ equity

Current ratio and quick ratio (times)

BEBE 356.9
RITIE R4 EE -
AR R = 133.5
TENLL R IR EN L R (%) 1.6

295.6

140.7
1.9
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20.7%
0%
(5.1)%
(15.8)%

3









CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEEH
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Mr. David John Kennedy (appointed on 30 June 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Yun Wah Man Acis, ACS, MCG
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
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Mr. Steven Paul Smithers
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Mr. Robert Peter Andrews
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Robert Peter Andrews (chairman)
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Mr. Neil David Howard
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AUDITORS
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

REGISTERED OFFICE

190 Elgin Avenue, George Town
Grand Cayman

KY1-9007

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

3/F, Bangkok Bank Building
18 Bonham Strand West
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Tower
12 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited
190 Elgin Avenue, George Town

Grand Cayman

KY1-9007

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54,Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PLACE OF LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
STOCK CODE

1547

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.ibi.com.hk
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the
audited financial results of 1Bl Group Holdings Limited together with
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2019.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Established in 1997, the Group is a building contractor focusing on
providing renovation services as a main contractor for property
projects in the private sector in both Hong Kong and Macau. Our
two main types of projects are fitting-out projects and alteration
and addition (“A&A”) projects.

Our major customers include a number of highly reputable
organisations and commercial enterprises in the private sector in
Hong Kong and Macau, including multi-national banks, hotel and
casino operators, a racing and betting operator and property
developers.

The Group’s competitive strengths have contributed to our
continued success and distinguished us from our competitors. We
believe our competitive strengths lie in three key specific areas of
the business, namely,

1. an established reputation and proven track record;
2. implementation, management and execution expertise; and

3. commitment to the management of risk, cash flow and
general financial security.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded profit after
tax of approximately HK$20.9 million (2018: HK$18.2 million) from
revenue totalling approximately HK$593.4 million (2018: HK$581.0
million). During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
completed 15 projects and was awarded 16 projects, 15 of which
were fitting-out projects and one was an A&A project.

As the business of the Group is project-based, profitability of the
Group is dependent on a consistent stream of tendering
opportunities.

10 IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/2019

BRIMR -

KATRAKRKEEEIZ 2Bl Group Holdings Limited &
REMNBARBE-_T—NF=ZA=+—HLEFEHK
BRI -

REABE

REBR—NNEFKEL - REENREEFT RGN
gAgEn o EERBRFMLERIBYRIAE WERE
e LMOHMAEEE SREEE U RNERNEZ
([A&A])IER -

BHPNIERFPAZRBBLRMLEMNBEBLEE
©¥  BREBRT BEELESEER BSEREY
SEBMARMERRR -

AEBENHFEE —HHEPRMBEKT - LERFAK
BEHFRRAMG - RAIBEAGHHRFELZAE=
EEXEFEXERHIE :

1. RIFBENGNEE

2. Eit  BEERATERAME K

3. BAORNERAR BReRENBEBUMBKRKE -

EHOE

HEZ-NFZA=Z+—RHILFE  AEEHRERA
WesB HEN5848EBTL(ZZE—)/\F :581.068E
T BB EFN20968E8BT(ZF—/\F 182
BEBL) HE-TE—NAFZAZ=Z+—HLEFE XK
EERISEER WER16EER - AR 15@ARE
HEB K1 EAARAIEE °

HRASEEBARB EAET - HAKRENRFEEN
BIRERGRIERETE -



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

Upon converting these tendering opportunities to awarded
contracts, the importance of a stringent project management
system comes into play so that costs can be controlled, income
can be secured and positive cash flow can be maintained.

From a risk perspective, a high level of importance is placed on our
tendering strategies, our prudent execution of the works and the
diligent monitoring and control of the commercial aspects of our
projects.

MARKET REVIEW
Hong Kong

During the year ended 31 March 2019, both the fitting-out and A&A
markets have been extremely active. The number of tendering
opportunities has been high and the Group has had to be selective
with its tendering strategy in order that the desire for revenue did
not exceed the capacity and ability of our project teams to
complete projects to our normal high levels of delivery.

The Group has performed well during the year ended 31 March
2019 and has been successful in securing a steady stream of new
projects. Awarded projects included, but are not limited to projects
for property developers, an insurance company and an investment
bank.

Securing quality and experienced project-related staff continues to
be a challenge in Hong Kong and this causes the greatest
restriction on our ability to grow in this market.

Macau

We have experienced an improvement in the operating environment
in Macau and have been fortunate to secure three new projects
during the year ended 31 March 2019. We have completed the
fitting-out of a private lounge and an air-side hangar facility in the
main Macau airport terminal for the Asia’s largest private jet
management company and have commenced work on a food and
beverage outlet for one of Macau’s premier hotel and casino
operators.

As a result of the increased activity in this market and in anticipation
of securing further work, we have signed up to a new office space
and increased our staffing levels. We will work hard over the
coming months to maintain a steady growth.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

OUTLOOK
Hong Kong

The Hong Kong market remains buoyant and the Group is
benefitting from healthy levels of tendering opportunities. As at the
date of this report, we have already secured a number of projects
with sufficient work which will keep our teams fully occupied
through-out the first half of the financial year ending 31 March
2020.

From a tendering perspective, we have a number of submitted
tenders that are looking very positive and from a revenue
perspective, we are looking at a very positive start to the next
financial year.

Macau

Significant focus will be placed on restructuring our team in Macau
to the point where more projects can be undertaken
simultaneously. We remain cautiously optimistic on the Macau
market and will be looking for significantly improved financial results
to flow from this year’s efforts.

We will spread our marketing efforts beyond the hotel and casino
industry in order to maximise our opportunities and to secure a
range of projects outside of this core focus. We hope this will
enable us to smooth out the more volatile nature of the hotel and
casino work and to provide more consistent results moving
forward.

General

The trade war between the United States of America and China will
continue to cast a shadow over Asia and although this had not yet
flowed down into the Hong Kong or Macau renovation services
industries, one would have to anticipate that if the matter is not
resolved soon, then some form of negative impact would be very
likely. We look forward to the two countries quickly resolving their
differences so that normal business relations can resume.

The Group continues to look at other opportunities that will help
increase its revenue and in this regard, the Group is looking at
potential acquisition opportunities that would boost its presence in
related industries as well as other territories. Preliminary
identification of suitable targets is ongoing, and announcement(s)
will be made by the Company in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules as and when appropriate.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

As at the date of this report, no specific target has been identified
by the Group and no legally binding nor non-legally binding
arrangement nor agreement has been entered into by the Group in
such regard.

APPRECIATION

Our Project teams and the supporting departments continue to
deliver a premium service to our clients, often under extreme time
related pressure. In carrying out their duties, they often work long
hours and absorb a great deal of work related stress. | greatly
appreciate this dedication and am constantly amazed at the
spectacular results that these teams achieve.

I would like to take this opportunity to again thank every member of
the IBI team for their supreme efforts and to acknowledge that it is
their professionalism and drive that provides the Group with its
excellent reputation in this extremely competitive industry.

On behalf of the Board

Neil David Howard
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmE DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bf 7 B R
Revenue [Igs

The Group is a building contractor focusing on providing renovation 7%= [ 5 2 3 AR B ST AR TG MO AR S EGR TS - IE(E RS
services as a main contractor for property projects in the private & RPFIFL AW 18 B &5 - R MR AIEE
sector in Hong Kong and Macau. Our two main types of projects B &()5IETEE : MK ()ASAIER °

are (i) fitting-out projects; and (i) A&A projects.

Revenue by geographical location of projects #IE B ith B & 5 B 2

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\F

% of % of

HK$’000 revenue HK$’ 000 revenue

(e (ERNE

FET Btk T Bkl

Hong Kong BB 575,388 97.0% 572,364 98.5%

Macau ] 18,060 3.0% 8,600 1.5%

Total #at 593,448 100.0% 580,964 100.0%
Revenue by type of projects BEEBEEE DK

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLEE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F
% of % of
HK$’000 revenue HK$’000 revenue
15 U 2 Yz
TET Bkl FET Btk
Fitting-out projects HIEIEH 479,928 80.9% 317,026 54.6%
A&A projects ARATE H 113,520 19.1% 263,938 45.4%
Total et 593,448 100.0% 580,964 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Revenue (Continued)

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$593.4 million, which represented an increase of
approximately HK$12.5 million or approximately 2.1% over the last
financial year. The overall increase in the Group’s revenue was
mainly due to an increased contribution from Macau which
generated approximately HK$18.1 million revenue, representing an
increase in revenue by approximately HK$9.5 million over the last
financial year from Macau. Revenue generated from Hong Kong
has remained stable with a slight increase in revenue of
approximately HK$3.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately HK$1.5
million or approximately 2.7% from approximately HK$53.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately HK$51.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2019. Such decrease in the
Group’s gross profit was mainly due to the decrease in gross profit
margin generated from projects in Macau and the timing of
concluding a number of final accounts. Accordingly, the Group’s
gross profit margin for the year ended 31 March 2019 decreased
to approximately 8.7% from approximately 9.2% for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Administrative and other operating expenses

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses for the
year ended 31 March 2019 were approximately HK$27.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$3.5 million or
approximately 11.2% from approximately HK$31.3 million for the
last financial year. The decrease was mainly due to (i) reduced
overhead cost in Macau; and (i) overall effective cost control during
the year ended 31 March 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Income tax expense

The Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong and Macau, and
are subject to (i) Hong Kong profits tax calculated at 8.25% for the
first HK$2 million and 16.5% on the remaining balance of estimated
assessable profits during the reporting period; and (ii) Macau
complementary tax calculated at 12.0% on the taxable profits over
the relevant tax threshold during the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded income
tax expense of approximately HK$3.9 million (2018: HK$4.4 million)
representing an effective tax rate of approximately 15.8% (2018:
19.5%). The decrease in the Group’s effective tax rate during the
current financial year was mainly due to the application of the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime as mentioned in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements above and the utilisation of tax
loss brought forward for Macau.

Profit for the year

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$20.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$2.7 million or approximately 14.7% from
approximately HK$18.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2018.
Such increase was mainly attributable to reduction in administrative
and other operating expenses as mentioned above.

Bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had no bank
borrowings. No financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net investments
hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging instruments.

Bt ¥ e ()
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE W R DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$356.5 million (as at 31 March 2018: HK$294.3
million) which comprised cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$109.4 million (as at 31 March 2018: HK$135.2
million), mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 March
2019, the Group had no non-current liabilities (as at 31 March
2018: nil), and its current liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$223.4 million (as at 31 March 2018: HK$154.9 million),
consisting mainly of payables arising in the normal course of
business operation. Accordingly, the current ratio, being the ratio of
current assets to current liabilities, was approximately 1.6 times as
at 31 March 2019 (as at 31 March 2018: 1.9 times). The Group’s
working capital requirements were mainly financed by internal
resources.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group is defined as a percentage of total
debts at the end of the reporting period divided by total equity at
the end of the reporting period. As at 31 March 2019 and 2018,
the Group did not have any debt and hence the gearing ratio was
nil.

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives to
reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the
Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.

Foreign exchange exposure

As the Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, it did not have any significant
exposure to risk resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates during the year ended 31 March 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group did not engage
in any derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Capital structure

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 14 October 2016 (the “Listing Date”). There has been no
change in the capital structure of the Company since the Listing
Date and up to the date of this report. The capital of the Company
comprises ordinary shares and capital reserves.

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (as at 31 March 2018: nil).

Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the share option scheme of the Company
(the “Share Option Scheme”) were summarised in the paragraph
headed “Statutory and General Information — F. Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV to the prospectus of the Company dated
29 September 2016 (the “Prospectus”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and providing benefits to eligible
participants and for such other purposes as the Board approves
from time to time.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date
of this report, no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Significant investments held

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not hold any significant
investments.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets
Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have other

plans for material investments and capital assets as at 31 March
2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2019, pledged deposits in the sum of
approximately HK$16.2 million (as at 31 March 2018: HK$22.6
million) were placed with a bank or an insurer as securities for the
performance bonds issued by the bank and insurer to certain
customers on their projects. The pledged deposits will be released
when the bank or insurer is satisfied that no claims will arise from
the projects under the performance bonds.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2019 (as at 31 March 2018: nil).

Information on employees

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 105 employees (as at 31
March 2018: 101), including the executive Directors. Total staff
costs (including Directors’ emoluments) were approximately
HK$61.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2019, as compared
with approximately HK$65.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2018. Remuneration is determined with reference to market norms
and individual employees’ performance, qualification and
experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to the
Group’s performance as well as individual’s performance. Other
staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme in Hong Kong and various welfare plans including the
provision of pension funds, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance and other relevant insurance for employees of our Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Information on employees (Continued)

The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system, which is reviewed by management annually.
The Group also operates the Share Option Scheme, pursuant to
which options to subscribe for shares of the Company may be
granted to the Directors and employees of the Group.

The Group encourages self-development of its employees and
provides on-the-job training where appropriate.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There were no significant events after the reporting period up to the
date of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company confirms that, other than the deviation from code
provision A.2.1, the Company had complied with all the code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Neil David Howard

Mr. Howard, aged 48, was appointed as a Director on 13 April
2016 and redesignated as an executive Director, the chairman of
our Board and chief executive officer on 11 June 2016. Mr. Howard
is a director of each of our subsidiaries. He is the chairman of the
nomination committee, and a member of the remuneration
committee of our Company. He is responsible for corporate
strategic planning and overall business development of our Group.
Mr. Howard’s interest in the Shares are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ and the Chief Executive’s Interests or Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of the
directors’ report in this annual report.

Mr. Howard has been with our Group for over ten years since
joining our Group as a director of IBI Limited in November 2006
and a managing director of IBI Macau since August 2007.

Prior to joining our Group in November 2006, Mr. Howard was the
regional operations director at a company currently known as
Global Beauty International Management Limited (principally
engaged in health and lifestyle services) from July 2002 to March
2005 where he was primarily responsible for upgrading the
company’s portfolio of treatment centres throughout the Asia
region.

Mr. Howard graduated from University of the West of England,
Bristol in the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree of science
in quantity surveying in July 1993. Mr. Howard then completed a
course in advanced insolvency law and practice 1 from The
University of Southern Queensland in Australia in July 2000. He also
obtained a diploma in insolvency from the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (currently known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) in Hong Kong in November 2001.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Steven Paul Smithers

Mr. Smithers, aged 51, was appointed as a Director on 13 April
2016 and redesignated as an executive Director and the chief
operations officer on 11 June 2016. Mr. Smithers is a director of
each of our subsidiaries. He is a member of the remuneration
committee and nomination committee of our Company. He is
responsible for corporate strategic planning, overall business
development, management and operations of our Group. Mr.
Smithers’ interest in the Shares are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and the Chief Executive’s Interests or Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of the Directors’
Report in this annual report.

Mr. Smithers has over 24 years of working experience in the
construction industry in Hong Kong. Prior to joining our Group in
May 2006 as a senior project manager, he was last employed as a
compliance and co-ordination manager at group companies under
Paul Y. group (which was principally engaged in construction
services) from March 1996 to April 2006 and he was primarily
responsible for managing the tender and pre-qualification process
and general management activities. From October 1994 to
February 1996, Mr. Smithers worked as a quality assurance
consultant at Construction Quality Management Ltd. (principally
engaged in ISO accredited management systems), where he was
seconded to Paul Y. group.

Mr. Smithers graduated from Brighton Polytechnic (currently known
as the University of Brighton) in the United Kingdom with a
bachelor’s degree of science in building engineering and
management in July 1991. Mr. Smithers then obtained a master’s
degree of business administration from University of Leicester in the
United Kingdom in July 1998. Mr. Smithers was admitted as a
member and a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Building in the
United Kingdom in August 1997 and June 2014, respectively. He
was also admitted as a member of the Institute of Management in
the United Kingdom in May 1998.
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams

Mr. Williams, aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 September 2016. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board. He is a member of
each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of our Company. Mr. Williams has over 42
years of experience in the areas of property valuation and estate
agency. Mr. Williams is the principal of Gareth Williams & Associates
(principally engaged in property valuation and estate agency) where
he is primarily responsible for specialist property valuations and
acquisitions and disposal of investment properties since January
2006. Additionally, he is currently a non-executive director of Wharf
Real Estate Investment Company Limited (Stock Code: 1997)
(principally engaged in property services in Hong Kong).

Mr. Williams was a property investment director of Wheelock
Properties (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2004 to July 2006
where he was responsible for property services. From June 2002
to September 2004, he worked as the chief executive in the Hong
Kong office of Knight Frank Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. (principally
engaged in providing property related services) where he was
responsible for the overall management. From May 1979 to June
2002, Mr. Williams worked for Vigers Hong Kong Limited (principally
engaged in valuation, property consultancy and estate agency) with
his last position as the chairman and chief executive officer where
he was primarily responsible for provision of property valuation and
estate agency services. From May 1976 to April 1979, Mr. Wiliams
served as rating and valuation surveyor at the Rating and Valuation
Department of the Hong Kong Government.

Mr. Williams was certified as a Fellow of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors in the United Kingdom and was elected as a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors in June 1984 and
December 1984, respectively. Additionally, he was also admitted as
a member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and a practising
member of The Academy of Experts, both based in the United
Kingdom, in December 1999 and April 2009, respectively.
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Mr. Robert Peter Andrews

Mr. Andrews, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 September 2016. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board. He is the chairman of
the remuneration committee, and a member of the nomination
committee and audit committee of our Company. Mr. Andrews has
over 28 years of experience in the construction industry. Mr.
Andrews is the director of Andrews Commercial Services Limited
(principally engaged in consultancy services in the construction
industry) since April 2013.

Mr. Andrews worked at Leighton Contractors (Asia) Limited
(principally engaged in construction) from January 1990 to March
2013, with his last position as the divisional commercial manager of
Hong Kong and Macau, where he was primarily responsible for
overseeing contractual and commercial aspect of the business unit.

Mr. Andrews obtained his diploma in quantity surveying from
Cauldon College (currently known as Stoke On Trent College) in the
United Kingdom in June 1979. He then obtained a certificate of
commercial mediation conducted by The Accord Group Australia in
association with the Mediation Council of the Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre in Hong Kong in December 1998.

Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong

Mr. Wong, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 September 2016 and resigned on 30 June
2019. He was responsible for providing independent advice to our
Board. He was the chairman of the audit committee, and a member
of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of our
Company until 30 June 2019. Mr. Wong has been working at
Young Brothers Aviation Ltd. (principally engaged in aviation
investments) as their chief financial officer since November 2000.

Mr. Wong has over 25 years of working experience in the fields of
finance and accounting. Mr. Wong acted as an independent non-
executive director for Ming Hing Waterworks Holdings Limited
(stock code: 402) (currently known as Peace Map Holding Ltd.)
(which was principally engaged in waterworks engineering) from
October 2008 to September 2010. He worked as a group
accounting manager at Tianjin Development Holdings Limited
(stock code: 882), principally engaged in utilities operations,
infrastructure operations and other investments, from February
1998 to November 2000.
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Mr. Wong was an accountant at Firstone International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 530) (currently known as Goldin Financial
Holdings Limited), which was principally engaged in winery and
wine related business, from October 1995 to February 1998. He
worked as a staff accountant lll at Ernst & Young from April 1994 to
October 1995.

Mr. Wong graduated from Curtin University of Technology in
Australia with a bachelor’s degree of business in accounting in
August 1992. He then obtained a second bachelor’s degree in
Chinese law jointly offered by Tsinghua University in the PRC and
Hong Kong University School of Professional and Continuing
Education in Hong Kong in July 2005. Mr. Wong is an associate of
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently known as Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) certified in June
1997, a certified practising accountant of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants admitted in December 1995, and
a certified tax adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong
registered in January 2015.

Mr. David John Kennedy

Mr. Kennedy, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 June 2019. He is responsible for providing
independent advice to our Board. He is the Chairman of the audit
committee, and a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of our Company since 30 June 2019. Mr.
Kennedy has been the chief financial officer and the chief operating
officer of M.S. Asia Group since 2012.

Mr. Kennedy was the chief operating officer and the chief executive
officer of Equititrust Limited between 2009 and 2011, the chief
operating officer of Octaviar Limited (formerly known as MFS
Limited) between 2007 and 2008, a senior manager, a partner and
the chief operating officer of RSM Hong Kong between 1997 and
2005, and a part-time lecturer in bankruptcy of Griffith University in
Australia between 1995 and 1996. He also worked for KPMG
between 1988 and 1996 with his last position being a manager.

Mr. Kennedy obtained a degree of Master of Laws, a Bachelor’'s
Degree in Laws and a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Accounting
from Queensland University of Technology in 2009, 2003 and
1989, respectively. He has been admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong since 2018, a solicitor in Queensland, Australia since 2006
and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia
(currently known as Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand) since 1994,
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Kwan John Lau

Mr. Lau, aged 51, first joined our Group in June 2001, and is
currently the tendering director of our Group. He is responsible for
overseeing tenders and recruitment of project-related staff.

Mr. Lau has over 24 years of working experience in the areas of
property development and fitting-out. Prior to joining our Group, he
worked as a project manager for L.P. Contractors & Construction
Co., (H.K) Ltd. (principally engaged in interior decoration business)
from July 1998 to June 2001 where he was primarily responsible
for the overall management of the company. From July 1996 to
July 1998, he worked as a project manager at Global Top Design &
Engineering Ltd. (principally engaged in interior fitting-out business)
where he was primarily responsible for fitting-out project
management. From August 1992 to April 1994, Mr. Lau worked as
the site supervisor at Interior Contract International Limited
(principally engaged in fitting-out, decoration and contracting)
where he was primarily responsible for fitting-out project
management.

Mr. Lau graduated with a bachelor’s degree of engineering in
industrial and civil engineering from Hunan University in the PRC in
July 1990. He then graduated with a master’s degree of science in
facility management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
Hong Kong in December 2005.

Mr. Siu Hong Lui

Mr. Lui, aged 44, first joined our Group in September 2005, and is
currently the regional director of our Group. He is responsible for
overseeing the Macau operations of our Group.

Mr. Lui has over 18 years of working experience in the construction
industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Lui worked as a quantity
surveyor for Paul Y. Construction Company, Limited from May
2001 to February 2005. He worked as an assistant quantity
surveyor in Gammon Construction Limited and Kier Hong Kong
Limited (both principally engaged in civil construction works) from
June 2000 to November 2000 and from August 1998 to July 1999,
respectively. Mr. Lui worked at Universal Dockyard, Limited with his
last position as the assistant quantity surveyor (principally engaged
in marine and civil construction works) from October 1994 to May
1996 where he was primarily responsible for project budget
planning and project subcontracting.
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Mr. Lui was awarded a certificate in building studies from the
Vocational Training Council for completing a course at Morrison Hill
Technical Institute (currently known as the Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in Hong Kong in July 1997. He
then obtained a higher diploma in building and construction from
City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November 2000.
Subsequently, Mr. Lui graduated with a bachelor’s degree of
science in construction management from University of
Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom in October 2005, before
attaining a master’s degree of science in construction law and
dispute resolution from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
Hong Kong in October 2008.

Mr. Wai Fung Kong

Mr. Kong, aged 43, first joined our Group in December 2009, and
is currently the commercial director of our Group. He is responsible
for overseeing the commercial department of our Group.

Mr. Kong has over 16 years of working experience in the field of
quantity surveying. He worked as a project quantity surveyor for
Chun Wo Construction and Engineering Company Limited,
principally engaged in construction, from May 2009 to November
2009. Mr. Kong worked as a quantity surveying consultant for
Rick’s Management Consultancy Limited (principally engaged in
quantity surveying consultancy services) from October 2006 to
March 2009. Mr. Kong worked as a project quantity surveyor for
New House Construction Co., Ltd, principally engaged in
construction services, from June 2005 to September 2006. He
worked as an assistant quantity surveyor at D. G. Jones & Partners
(H.K.) Ltd. and then as a quantity surveyor at Northcroft Hong Kong
Ltd., both principally engaged in construction consultancy services,
from July 2001 to April 2002 and from July 2002 to August 2004,
respectively.

Mr. Kong graduated with a bachelor’s degree of science in quantity
surveying and a master’s degree of engineering in building
engineering from City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in
November 2001. He was elected as a professional member of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and was certified as a
registered professional surveyor in the quantity surveying division
by the Surveyors Registration Board in February 2010 and April
2013, respectively.
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Ms. Wai Che Rosanna Chu

Ms. Chu, aged 52, first joined our Group in December 2003, and is
currently the chief financial officer of our Group. She is responsible
for overseeing the financial and accounting functions of our Group.

Ms. Chu has over 27 years of working experience in the field of
accounting. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2002 to June
2003, Ms. Chu worked as a senior manager in the finance
department of PricewaterhouseCoopers. From April 1996 to June
2002, she worked as a manager in the finance department of
Arthur Andersen & Co. From September 1990 to March 1996, she
was employed by Ernst & Young, with her last position as manager
in the audit department.

Ms. Chu graduated with a bachelor’s degree of commerce from
The University of Manitoba in Canada in May 1989. She is a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
certified in July 1995, and an associate of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants (currently known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) certified in December 1995.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Yun Wah Man

Mr. Man, aged 36, was appointed as the company secretary of our
Company on 11 June 2016. He is the principal and head of
corporate advisory division of Dominic K.F. Chan & Co., and a
director of RHT Corporate Advisory (HK) Ltd.. Mr. Man has over
eight years of experience in corporate services.

Mr. Man is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries certified in March
2015.

Mr. Man obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts in business
administration and management from University of Huddersfield in
the United Kingdom in March 2010 and a master’s degree of
corporate governance from The Open University of Hong Kong in
Hong Kong in November 2014.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are to act as a contractor
focusing on providing renovation services as a main contractor for
property projects in the private sector in Hong Kong and Macau.

BUSINESS REVIEW
General

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a
business review of the Group for the year and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis as set out on pages 15 to 21
of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year ended 31 March 2019 using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Financial Summary on
page 173 of this annual report. These discussions form part of this
directors’ report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

As the business of the Group is project-based, profitability of the
Group is dependent on a consistent stream of tender opportunities.

Upon converting these tender opportunities to awarded contracts,
the importance of a stringent project management system comes
into play so that costs can be controlled, income can be secured
and positive cashflow can be maintained.

From a risk perspective, a high level of importance is placed on our
tender strategies, our prudent execution of the works and the
diligent monitoring and controlling of the commercial aspects of our
projects.

Further details of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Company are set out in the section headed “Risk Factors” in the
Prospectus.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to its corporate and social responsibility in
promoting a sustainable and environmentally friendly environment.
We strive to minimise our environmental impact in our daily course
of business. The Group’s in-house guidelines contain measures
and work procedures governing environmental protection
compliance that are required to be followed by the Group’s
employees, suppliers and subcontractors. Such measures and
procedures included air pollution control, noise control and waste
disposal.

Further details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are set out in the Environmental Social and
Governance Report of the Company (the “ESG Report”) in this
annual report.

Compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group

The Group and its business are governed by certain laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group. To the best
of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, during the year
ended 31 March 2019, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
The Company has complied in material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

Key relationships with major stakeholders

The Group fully understands that its employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close and stable relationship
with our employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality construction services to our customers so as
to ensure the Group’s sustainable development.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated and provides them with health and safety and other
developmental training and has proper whistle blowing procedures
in place for our employees to follow without fear of reprisal of
receiving any negative impacts.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Key relationships with major stakeholders (Continued)
Customers

The Group’s principal customers include a number of highly
reputable organisations and commercial enterprises in the private
sector in Hong Kong and Macau, including multi-national banks,
hotel and casino operators, a racing and betting operator and
property developers. The Group have established stable and long
business relationships with some of our major customers with our
long years of operating history built up a strong business network
of customers and other professional consultants, which has
consistently presented us with business opportunities.

Subcontractors and Suppliers

Our major suppliers include subcontractors and suppliers of
materials. The Group firmly believes that its subcontractors and
suppliers are equally important in cost control and increasing its
bargaining power on procurement of materials, which further
secures its competitiveness when bidding for tenders. The Group
proactively communicates with its subcontractors and suppliers to
ensure they are committed to delivering high-quality and
sustainable products and services. Unless the customers require
the Group to engage subcontractors and suppliers nominated by
them, the Group will select subcontractors and suppliers from its
approved lists of subcontractors and suppliers. In addition, during
the continuance of the contracts with the subcontractors, the
Group will provide them with its internal guidelines on safety and
environmental issues and require them to follow. The Group
effectively implements the subcontractor assessment process to
monitor the performance of its subcontractors by conducting
regular site visits, evaluation on the performance of the contract
and other measures.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 30 June 2019, Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong (“Mr. Wong”) had
resigned as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of the audit committee, a member of the remuneration committee
and the nomination committee of the Company, and Mr. David
John Kennedy took up Mr. Wong’s positions on even date. For
further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 30 June 2019.

Save for the above, there were no significant events after the
reporting period up to the date of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy during the year ended 31
March 2019 to allow shareholders to enjoy the sharing of the profits
of the Company while retaining adequate reserves and working
capital for future growth and development. In proposing any
dividend pay out, the Board shall also consider variety factors,
including but not limited to the Group’s actual and expected
financial results, financial position of the Group, expected working
capital requirement, future development/investment plans, general
economic conditions, retained earnings and distributable reserves
and any other factors that the Board considers relevant. The
Company does not have any fixed dividend distribution ratio.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set
out in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 89 of this report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.5
cents per Share for the year ended 31 March 2019, to be payable
on or about Friday, 18 October 2019. Based on 800,000,000
Shares in issue as at the date of this report, it is expected that the
total amount of final dividend payable to the Shareholders is
HK$12.0 million in aggregate for the year ended 31 March 2019,
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 2019 AGM.

An interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share, amounting to HK8.0
million was paid to the Shareholders on 18 January 2019.

As far as the Company was aware, as at the date of this report,
there had been no arrangement under which any Shareholder has
waived, or agreed to waive, any dividends proposed to be
distributed for the year ended 31 March 2019.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitiement to attend and vote at
the 2019 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 17 September 2019 to Friday, 20 September
2019 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the 2019 AGM, all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 16 September 2019.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 2019 AGM, the
proposed final dividend will be payable on or about Friday, 18
October 2019 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 4 October 2019.
To ascertain the entitlement of the Shareholders to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 2 October 2019 to Friday, 4 October
2019 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all duly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 30 September 2019.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
March 2019 are set out in the consolidated statements of changes
in equity on page 91 of this annual report and note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements. As at 31 March 2019, the
reserves of the Company available for distribution, as calculated
under the provision of section 79B of the Companies Ordinance,
and in accordance with the Companies Law Cap.22 of Cayman
Islands, was approximately HK$92.8 million inclusive of share
premium and retained earnings.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements on page 154 of this annual
report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 173 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2019 amounted to HK$81,600.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the
date of this report were:

Name Position

Mr. Neil David Howard Executive Director, chairman,
chief executive officer
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Executive Director,

chief operations officer
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Independent non-executive Director
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews  Independent non-executive Director
Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong

(resigned on
30 June 2019)

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. David John Kennedy
(appointed on
30 June 2019)

Independent non-executive Director

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out in “Biographies of the Directors and
Senior Management” in this report.

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Richard Gareth Williams, Mr.
Robert Peter Andrews and Mr. David John Kennedy shall retire by
rotation at the 2019 AGM and they being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2019
AGM has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than under normal statutory
obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the Directors and the chief executive had the
following interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company, its Group members and/or associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SF0”), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as
follows:

The Company
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Name of Relevant company the total issued
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chief executive nature of interest corporation) class of Shares! of our Company
RADREET
B xE HHE AR R A48 58 R Y
THRABHE 2V 131 (EfEEELE) G2 RER BMARER DT
Mr. Neil David Howard Interest in controlled Brilliant Blue Sky Limited 397,376,000 Shares 49.67%
(“Mr. Howard") corporation (“Brilliant Blue Sky”)
Neil David Howard 4% X EERER Brilliant Blue Sky Limited 397,376,000 (&A% 15
(THoward &4 )2 (Brilliant Blue Sky )
Mr. Howard Beneficial owner N/A 13,336,000 Shares 1.67%
Howard ¢ £ EnBAA TiEA 13,336,000 f& f% {5
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Interest in controlled Breadnbutter Holdings Limited 174,888,000 Shares 21.86%
(“Mr. Smithers”) corporation (‘Breadnbutter Holdings”)
Steven Paul Smithers 5c 4 ZENEERER Breadnbutter Holdings Limited 174,888,000 iz & {7
([Smithers &4 )2 (IBreadnbutter Holdings |)
Mr. Smithers Beneficial owner N/A 9,112,000 Shares 1.14%
Smithers %4 EnEEA TEA 9,112,000 B & 17

Notes: e -

(1) All the above Shares are held in long position. (1) MNUEFBRMDHENTERFS -

(2)  Brilliant Blue Sky, wholly-owned by Mr. Howard, held 397,376,000  (2)  Howard 5t 4 2 & # /A &) Briliant Blue Sky & 397,376,000
Shares. Mr. Howard is deemed to be interested in the 397,376,000 % B% 17 > Howard %t 4 1R 15 7% % &k A & & 0 % R B K
Shares pursuant to the SFO. 397,376,000 B A& D P #E B i s o

(3)  Breadnbutter Holdings, wholly-owned by Mr. Smithers, held 174,888,000  (3)  Smithers%t 4 %2 & # /A& HJBreadnbutter Holdings #F A&

Shares. Mr. Smithers is deemed to be interested in the 174,888,000
Shares pursuant to the SFO.

174,888,000 i A& 1% ° Smithers %t AR I 75 5 I B & (5 A AR
A7 174,888,000 RE A9 AR A AR o
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons/entities (not being the Director or chief executive)
had, or deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members and/or
associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRRKRG  HEROREEREPHE

mRAR

RZZB-NF=ZA=1+—8B BREFEmRHM UTA
T/ ER(UHEEFHETETBRABIREAQT  HEH
B R E R, SRR B B AR () SAERE AR (- BER K
BRSERRBES LB ROIEXVEFE 2 REIDH
SRR R AR EE H A ARR BIRIRRE 75 M E & (50
FIBOIHRATEFENTLMOESIAR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Number and share capital of

Name Capacity/nature of interest class of Shares! our Company

RAERBEE&IT

RAEE R

wE /A8 B HEntE ROEBERER HMORERDL

Brilliant Blue Sky? Beneficial interest 397,376,000 Shares 49.67%
Brilliant Blue Sky? B 397,376,000 A& I {7

Ms. Shuen Jolie Chung Howard?® Interest of spouse 410,712,000 Shares 51.34%
Ehe e foiBHEss 410,712,000 B& A& {5

Breadnbutter Holdings* Beneficial interest 174,888,000 Shares 21.86%
Breadnbutter Holdings* EnEn 174,888,000 J& J& 1%

Ms. Yuk Fan Joe Lam® Interest of spouse 184,000,000 Shares 23.00%

MEF LS

Notes:

(R

184,000,000 A% fn

(1)
@

38

All the above Shares are held in long position.

Brilliant Blue Sky, wholly-owned by Mr. Howard, held 397,376,000
Shares. Mr. Howard is deemed to be interested in 397,376,000 Shares
pursuant to the SFO.

Ms. Shuen Jolie Chung Howard, the spouse of Mr. Howard, is deemed to
be interested in the 13,336,000 Shares held by Mr. Howard and the
397,376,000 Shares held by Mr. Howard through his controlled
corporation, Brilliant Blue Sky, pursuant to the SFO.

Breadnbutter Holdings, wholly-owned by Mr. Smithers, held 174,888,000
Shares. Mr. Smithers is deemed to the interested in 174,888,000 Shares
pursuant to the SFO.

Ms. Yuk Fan Joe Lam, the spouse of Mr. Smithers, is deemed to be
interested in the 9,112,000 Shares held by Mr. Smithers and the
174,888,000 Shares held by Mr. Smithers through his controlled
corporation, Breadnbutter Holdings, pursuant to the SFO.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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) AERBEBRODBIERRS -

(2)  Howard %t 4 & & ¥ & 19 Brilliant Blue Sky % 4 397,376,000
BERE D e Howard e £ R IE B S R B E KO B E AR
397,376,000 f& & 5 A o

(3)  #EhrZ+ (Howard A& B ECAB ) 1R 1R 38 5 R I 5 1601 1048
# Howard %t 4 %5 4 #9 13,336,000 % f% 13 & Howard %t & i&
3B H 725K [ Brilliant Blue Sky #578 £ 397,376,000 & % 5/
HHRER -

(4)  Smithers%t 4= 2 & ¥ B #)Breadnbutter Holdings #§ A&
174,888,000 A% I 1% © Smithers 9t 4 1R 15 38 5 & HA & 16 7] 1%
BB 174,888,000 FRAR 15 F#EB s ©

(6)  MEZ LT (Smithers AR ER ) IRIFEH K BB 01348
/572 Smithers 4t 4 45 & #99,112,000 % f% 17 K Smithers 4t 4
i% 4B E 5 #2% 8 Breadnbutter Holdings 5 /& #J 174,888,000
AR A A ek o
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year ended 31 March 2019, purchases from the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 10.7% of the total
purchase cost and the aggregate purchases from its top five
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 29.6% of the
total purchase cost.

Sales to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
49.5% of the total revenue and the aggregate sales to its top five
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 74.4% of the
total revenue.

None of our Directors, any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of our Directors, own more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had any
interest in any of our five largest suppliers and customers during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles,
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in the Cayman Islands.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally approved and adopted the Share
Option Scheme on 20 September 2016 by passing of a written
resolution of the then shareholders of the Company. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date and will
remain in force until the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date. No
option under the Share Option Scheme had been granted during
the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this report.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined below)
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

EEEHN

BE_T-NF=ZA=T—"HLFERETLHFAE
A EBARR R X BEE XA ERIDNEERITHBR
HEH)

FREFRHER
BE-Z-NF=A=+—BLFE FEESREA

HERMNRBRGEARBRALN107%  MFRAARMH
JER VA IRIBRR A FHE BIRB RN A 40 29.6% ©

REBP REXEFHHEREARKEH49.5%
RAREFPHBHERAFEAKENT4.4% -

i

BE_ZT-NF=A=+—HILFE &F HEFR
BB ASEMRESMAER AR R ETRAEB
5% WBRBER AAHREA LT A TS

BRBRE

MR AR BEE S A R E TR AV RS
BB AP IR I B BRAER -

HERE

BRES

ARBRZE—RNFALAZTHBEBARN R ERRERN
EERBRBGEIERERNERE S - BREE
RETBEERS  UTEHEEREZ FMBERE+AS
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B &

BREAIEERARTAAER2EE (EER T
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Eligible persons

Under the Share Option Scheme, eligible persons include any full-
time or part-time employees, potential employees, executives or
officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and
any suppliers, customers, agents and advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, has contributed or will contribute to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Eligible
Participants”).

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares pursuant to which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed
80,000,000 Shares, which represented 10% of the then issued
share capital of the Company as at the Listing Date and the date of
this annual report. This limit may be renewed at any time provided
that the new limit must not exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of the Shareholders’ approval for the
renewal.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Share Option
Scheme, the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company at any time must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted under any schemes
of our Company if such grant will result in this 30% limit being
exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders at general meeting, the
maximum entitlerment of each Eligible Participant is that the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
outstanding options granted and to be granted to such Eligible
Participant (including exercised, outstanding and cancelled options)
under the Share Option Scheme and other scheme(s) of the
Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Option period

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme, during a period notified or
to be notified by the Board, provided that such period of time does
not exceed 10 years commencing on the date on which the option
is granted.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it is exercised

Each grantee under the Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to
exercise his/her option in the manner set out in his/her offer
document. The period within which an option may be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme is determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion, provided that such period is consistent with
any other terms and condition of the Share Option Scheme.

Payment on acceptance of the option

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on or before the last
day for acceptance of the option as set out in the offer document.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Schemes
shall be at the absolute discretion of the Board, provided that it is
not less than the highest of (a) the official closing price of the
Shares as stated in daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date; (b) the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
offer date; and (c) the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years from the
Listing Date and ending on the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date
(both days inclusive), unless otherwise terminated, cancelled or
amended.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. Particulars of the employee
retirement benefits of the Group are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum public float of
25% as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 have
been audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2019 AGM. There has been no change in auditor
since the Listing Date.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2019 was the
Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of
its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debenture of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, save for the Share Option
Scheme, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked
agreements in respect of Shares.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Company and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as the related party transactions disclosed in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report, no Controlling
Shareholder had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance (whether for the provision of services to
the Company or not) to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

There has been no other change in Directors’ biographical details
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the
date of this report.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to avoid potential conflicts of interests with our Company,
our Controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. Neil David Howard and
Brilliant Blue Sky Limited, have entered into a deed of non-
competition in favour of our Company (for itself and for the benefits
of each other member of our Group) on 20 September 2016,
pursuant to which they have undertaken, among others, not to
compete with the business of the Group. Details of the Deed are
set out in the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” in the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written
confirmation to the Board in respect of their compliance with the
undertakings in the Deed during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders,
the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as
part of the annual review process and confirmed that the
Controlling Shareholders had complied with the Deed during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices,
pursuant to the Articles. Such provisions were in force throughout
the year ended 31 March 2019 and are currently in force. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought
against the Directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the ordinary
course of business by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2019 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements
in this report.

The related party transactions set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute “continuing connected transactions”
(as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) which are fully
exempted from the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had not
conducted any “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules)
which is subject to reporting and annual review requirements under
the Listing Rules.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this
annual report form part of this report.

On behalf of the Board
Neil David Howard
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing Shareholder value
through good corporate governance. The Company has developed
and implemented sound governance policies and measures, and
the Board is responsible for performing such corporate governance
duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor the corporate
governance of the Company with reference to the CG Code so as
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance of the
Company.

The Company confirms that, other than the deviation from Code
Provision A.2.1, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

Our Company complies with all the Code Provisions with the
exception of Code Provision A.2.1, which requires the roles of
chairman and chief executive be different individuals. Under Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Neil David Howard holds both positions. Mr.
Howard has been primarily responsible for overseeing our Group’s
general management and business development and for
formulating business strategies and policies for our business
management and operations since he joined our Group in 2006.
Taking into account the continuation of management and the
implementation of our business strategies, our Directors (including
our independent non-executive Directors) consider it is most
suitable for Mr. Howard to hold both the positions of chief executive
officer and the chairman of our Board and the present
arrangements are beneficial to and in the interests of our Company
and our Shareholders as a whole. Our Company will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the Board and
chief executive officer of our Company at a time when it is
appropriate and suitable by taking into account the circumstances
of our Group as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has general
powers for the management and conduct of the Company’s
business. The day-to-day operations and management are
delegated by the Board to the management of the Company, who
will implement the strategy and direction as determined by the
Board.

Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent non-
executive Directors so that the Board has a strong independent
element, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

Currently, the Board comprises the following five Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. Neil David Howard (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Richard Gareth Williams

Mr. Robert Peter Andrews

Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong!"
(resigned on 30 June 2019)

Mr. David John Kennedy®
(appointed on 30 June 2019)

1 Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company, a chairman of audit committee and a member of
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the Company on
30 June 2019, he would like to devote more time to his career
commitments.

2 Mr. David John Kennedy was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the company, a chairman of audit committee and a member of
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the Company on
30 June 2019.

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
of this report.
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Responsibilities of executive Directors

The executive Directors are responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses
development, strategic formulation and are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.

Responsibilities of independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors participate in the Board
meetings to bring in an independent judgment to bear on the issues
of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conducts and scrutinise the
Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives. They are also responsible for ensuring a high standard
of financial and other mandatory reporting of the Board as well as
providing a balance in the Board in order to effectively exercise an
independent judgment on the corporate actions of the Company so
as to protect Shareholders’ interest and the overall interest of the
Group.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had
three independent non-executive Directors, which met the
requirements of the Listing Rules that the number of independent
non-executive Directors must represent at least one-third of the
Board and should not be less than three, and that at least one of
the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence in writing pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board is satisfied that all the
independent non-executive Directors have been independent and
met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of
this report.

Term of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 20 September 2016 and the Company has
issued letters of appointment to each of the independent non-
executive Directors. The principal particulars of these service
contracts and letters of appointment are (i) for a term of three years
commencing from their respective effective dates; and (i) subject to
termination in accordance with their respective terms. The term of
the service contracts and the letters of appointment may be
renewed in accordance with our Articles and the applicable Listing
Rules.
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Remuneration

Our Directors and our senior management receive remuneration in
the form of salaries, allowances and other benefits, including our
contribution on defined contribution retirement plans.

The aggregate amount of remuneration (including salaries,
allowances, discretionary bonuses, other benefits and contributions
to pension schemes) paid or payable to our Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2019 was approximately HK$7.8 million.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to Code
Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
March 2019 is set out below:

Remuneration of the senior management by bands

)

EEREATEBAGS RULEBEN(BRETH
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B BI85 195 AR E B

Number of
senior
management
=&
EEEAH

Nil — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

Save as disclosed in this report, (i) no remuneration was paid to our
Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join, or upon joining, our Group; (i) Nno compensation was paid to,
or receivable by, our Directors or past Directors or the five highest
paid individuals during the year ended 31 March 2019 for the loss
of office as director of any member of our Group or of any other
office in connection with the management of the affairs of any
member of our Group; and (i) none of our Directors waived any
emoluments during the same period.

Save as disclosed in this report, no Director or none of the five
highest paid individuals has been paid in cash or shares or
otherwise by any person either to induce him to become, or to
qualify him as a Director, or otherwise for service rendered by him
in connection with the promotion or formation of us.
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Directors’ induction and continuing professional
development

Each of the Directors, namely, Mr. Neil David Howard, Mr. Steven
Paul Smithers, Mr. Richard Gareth Williams, Mr. Robert Peter
Andrews and Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong (resigned on 30 June
2019), had participated in continuous professional development
during the year ended 31 March 2019 by reading materials relating
to duties and responsibilities of directors of a listed company in
Hong Kong, the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations. The Company arranges suitable training for all Directors
in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part of
their continuous professional development.

Meetings of Board and Board committees and Directors’
attendance records

Notice of regular Board meetings is served on all Directors at least
14 days before the meeting. For other Board and Board committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board or Board committee meeting to keep Directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the Senior
Management of the Company where necessary.

The minutes of Board and Board committee meetings are kept by
the company secretary and are open for inspection by any Director.
The minutes of Board and Board committee meetings record in
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views
expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within a
reasonable time after the meetings are held.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, one general meeting was
held while four Board meetings were held whereat the Board (i)
reviewed and approved the financial results for the year ended 31
March 2018; (ii) reviewed and approved the financial results for the
six months ended 30 September 2018; (iii) considered and
approved the overall strategies and policies of the Group; and (iv)
considered and approved the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and the Senior Management. The attendance
of individual Directors at the general meeting and Board meetings
is set out in the following table:

HE_Z-NFZAZ+—HLFE  KRAREIT—KX
RAE MEFCARTUAESTSSHNNEHIR
WEBE T N\E=A=1T—"B I FENMKEE
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EZRERMERBRTEERSREREEBNFTMNTS - @
AEELERREAGRESESZNCHINTE

Attended/
Eligible to attend
BHESERERE

2018
Annual Board
General Meeting Meetings

—E-N\fF
Name of Directors EEHE BREBEAE Exees
Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard 5t 4 11 4/4
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 5t 4 11 4/4
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams %t 4 0/1 4/4
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews 5t 4 11 4/4

Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong FTUREE

(resigned on 30 June 2019) (RZE—-NFNA=THET) 1/1 4/4

Mr. David John Kennedy
(appointed on 30 June 2019)

David John Kennedy 5& 4

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior
Management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this corporate
governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Each of the Board committees operates under its
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Audit committee

We have established our Audit Committee in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules on 20 September 2016. Our Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. David John
Kennedy (appointed on 30 June 2019 following the resignation of
Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong), Mr. Richard Gareth Williams and Mr.
Robert Peter Andrews.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and considering any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° developing and implementing a policy on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting
the same to the Board, and identifying and making
recommendations on any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed;

° discussing with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations, and ensuring proper co-ordination where more
than one audit firm is involved;

o discussing problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the external auditor may
wish to discuss (in the absence of the Senior Management
where necessary);
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monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;

discussing the risk management and internal control systems
with the Senior Management to ensure that the Senior
Management has performed its duties in establishing and
maintaining effective systems, including matters on adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

considering major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and the Senior Management’s response to
these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewing and
monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by such auditor to the Senior
Management about the accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and the Senior Management’s
response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference;

reviewing arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and
ensuring that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;
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54

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

establishing a whistle-blowing policy and system for
employees of the Company and those who deal with the
Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in
confidence, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company;

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the Senior
Management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors;

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the
Company’s annual report;

reviewing on-going connected transactions of the Company
and ensuring compliance with the terms of approval by the
Shareholders;

reviewing the findings of internal investigations and the Senior
Management’s responses in relation to any suspected fraud
or irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringement
of laws, rules and regulations; and

considering any other topics as determined by the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, two Audit Committee
meetings were held whereat the Audit Committee (i) reviewed the
unaudited consolidated financial results of the Company for the six
months ended 30 September 2018; and (ii) reviewed the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2018. The attendance of individual members was
set out in the following table:

BE_T-NF=A=+—BILFE BRZEGH]T
MAGHN()ERARRBE_T-\FALA=THL
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Attended/

Name of committee members Eligible to attend

ZEERERR BHE SEEHE

Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong T ASE 2/2
(resigned on 30 June 2019) (R=—ZE—NENA=1+HEF)

Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams & 4 2/2

Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews 5t 4 2/2

Mr. David John Kennedy
(appointed on 30 June 2019)

Remuneration committee

We established our Remuneration Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules on 20 September 2016. Our
Remuneration Committee consists of five members, namely Mr.
Robert Peter Andrews (chairman), Mr. David John Kennedy
(appointed on 30 June 2019 following the resignation of Mr. Lap
Shek Eddie Wong), Mr. Richard Gareth Williams, Mr. Neil David
Howard and Mr. Steven Paul Smithers. The principal responsibilities
of the Remuneration Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
the Senior Management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing a remuneration
policy;

o reviewing and approving the Senior Management’s
remuneration proposals by reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and the Senior
Management and such packages include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;
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° considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and the Senior Management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive;

° reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration; and

° reviewing the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements for
the Directors and the Senior Management.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model described in
Code Provision B.1.2(c) (ii) of the CG Code (i.e. make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and Senior Management).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held whereat the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and recommended to the Board for
consideration of the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and the Senior Management. The attendance of individual
members was set out in the following table.
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Attended/
Name of committee members Eligible to attend
ZEEREME BHE SEREE
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews %t 4 2/2
Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong T AEE 2/2
(resigned on 30 June 2019) (RA=—ZT—AENA=FHEE)
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams %t 4 2/2
Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard 5t 4 2/2
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers %t 4 2/2
Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy %t 4 -
(appointed on 30 June 2019) (RZE-—NFRA=THEZT)
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Nomination committee

We established our Nomination Committee in compliance with the
CG Code on 20 September 2016. Our Nomination Committee
consists of five members, namely Mr. Neil David Howard
(chairman), Mr. David John Kennedy (appointed on 30 June 2019
following the resignation of Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong), Mr. Richard
Gareth Williams, Mr. Robert Peter Andrews and Mr. Steven Paul
Smithers. The primary duties of our Nomination Committee are to
make recommendations to our Board on the appointment of our
Directors and Senior Management.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board;

° assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

° reviewing the Board diversity policy of the Company, as
appropriate; and reviewing the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing such policy, and the progress
on achieving the objectives; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
the Directors, in particular, the chairman and the chief
executives.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, one Nomination Committee
meeting was held whereat the Nomination Committee (i) assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; (ii)
recommended to the Board for consideration the re-appointment
of all the retiring Directors as Directors at the 2019 AGM; (iii)
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board; and (iv)
reviewed the Board diversity policy. The attendance of individual
members was set out in the following table.
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Attended/
Name of committee members Eligible to attend
ZEBREMSR BHE SEELE
Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard %t 4= 1/1
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 7t 4 11
Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong FIAR%AE 11
(resigned on 30 June 2019) (R=ZZ—AFRNAZTHEMD)
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews 5t 4 11
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams %t 4= 11
Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy %t 4 -
(appointed on 30 June 2019) (RZE—NFAA=THEZME)
Nomination Policy BEBR
The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the BEEDHRMEZEE  EFREITE  ZITREHZE

procedures and criteria for the selection, appointment and
reappointment of the Directors. In evaluating and selecting any
candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee shall
consider the candidates’ character and integrity, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience, independence,
diversity on the Board, willingness to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a Board member and such other criteria that
are appropriate to the business of the Company.

Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for securities transactions. Following specific enquires of
all the Directors, all the Directors confirm that they have complied
with the required standards of dealing as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND REMUNERATION

BDO Limited is appointed as the external auditor of the Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the fees paid to BDO Limited
for the audit of the annual financial statements of the Group are
HK$900,000 (excluding the expenses on the non-audit service
provided by BDO Limited).

The non-auditing services fees charged by BDO Limited in relation
to the agreed-upon procedures performed on the interim financial
results of the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2018
are approximately HK$90,000.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow
during the reporting period. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis. There are no material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. A statement
from the external auditors about its reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements is set out on pages 83 to 88 of
this report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems in order to safeguard
the Group’s assets and Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are
adequate. The Company outsourced its internal audit function to an
external consultant who reports directly to the Board. The internal
audit function primarily carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the issuer’s risk
management and internal control systems, and reports their
findings to the Board on, at least, an annual basis.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility
and authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are
entrusted to individual department which is accountable for its own
conduct and performance and is required to operate its own
department’s business within the scope of the delegated authority
and to implement and strictly adhere to the strategies and policies
set by the Company from time to time. Each department is also
required to keep the Board informed of material developments of
the department’s business and implementation of the policies and
strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board had reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems
of the Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and
operated by the management in compliance with the agreed
procedures and standards. The review covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. In particular, the Board considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions. The review was made by
discussions with the management of the Company and the
assessment conducted by the Audit Committee. The Board
believes that the existing internal control system is adequate and
effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company takes
seriously of its obligations under Part XIVA of the SFO and the
Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure
Compliance Policy which sets out guidelines and procedures to the
Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside information of
the Group is to be disseminated to the public in an equal and timely
manner. A flowchart has been improvised to provide guidelines for
next action steps. The Company has also communicated to all
relevant staff regarding the implementation of the Continuous
Disclosure Compliance Policy and the relevant trainings are also
provided.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER
RIGHTS

The Company’s annual general meeting remains the principal forum
for dialogue with the Shareholders. The Shareholders are
encouraged to participate in the proceedings and ask questions
about the resolutions being proposed and the operations of the
Group. The Articles allows a Shareholder entitled to attend and
vote to appoint more than one proxy to attend and vote on behalf
of the Shareholder and also provides that a proxy need not be a
shareholder of the Company.

Code Provision E.1.3 of the CG Code stipulates that the issuer
should arrange for the notice to Shareholders to be sent in the case
of the annual general meeting at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and in the case of all other general meetings at
least 10 clear business days before the meeting. The Company has
been in compliance with such code provision.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
Shareholder meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever it
thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the company
secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meseting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2016 Revision). However, Shareholders who wish
to propose resolutions may follow article 64 of the Articles for
requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a
resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures of
article 64 are set out above. As regards proposing a person for
election as a Director, the procedures are available on the website
of the Company.

Procedures for putting enquiries to the Company and
contact details

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to directors or management of the Company. Such
questions, requests and comments can be addressed to the
Company by mail to 3/F, Bangkok Bank Building, 18 Bonham
Strand West, Hong Kong or by email to ibi@ibi.com.hk.
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Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings by mail to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong or by telephone at
(852) 2980-1333, who has been appointed by the Company to
deal with Shareholders for share registration and related matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this
report, there has not been any change in the Articles. The Articles
are available on the websites of the Company (www.ibi.com.hk)
and the Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND PRIMARY
CONTACT OF THE COMPANY

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures are followed. The company
secretary of the Company is Mr. Yun Wah Man. He was the
principal and head of corporate advisory division of Dominic K.F.
Chan & Co., and is a director of RHT Corporate Advisory (HK)
Limited. The primary corporate contact person at the Company is
Mr. Neil David Howard, the chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Yun Wah Man has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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The Group is pleased to present the ESG Report to express the
Group’s efforts towards sustainable practices and development.
The Group’s ESG Report has been set out in accordance with the
standards as set forth by the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited in its ESG Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

This ESG Report focuses on our sustainability approach and
performance in the environmental and social aspects of our
business primarily in Hong Kong in the reporting period from 1 April
2018 to 31 March 2019. The Group will continue to strengthen the
information collection of the business in both Hong Kong and
Macau in order to enhance the performance in environmental
concerns and to disclose relevant information in sustainable
development.

Established in 1997, our Group has grown to become one of the
region’s leading building contractors in the corporate, retail,
hospitality and education sectors in Hong Kong and Macau. Our
Group has completed hundreds of projects continuing to building
on our reputation on the back of our core principles of strong
communication, director involvement and staunch business ethics.

Our Group is a building contractor focusing on providing renovation
services as a main contractor for property projects in the private
sector including fitting-out projects and A&A projects. We take on
the overall responsibility for all aspects of project management,
coordination, safety and quality control but do not directly
undertake the physical construction works. Our specialist
subcontractors are responsible for performing the labour intensive
and skilled trade works of the projects. The pollution management
and wastage treatment is directly controlled by subcontractors
while the Group provides pollution and wastage treatment
guidelines and plays a monitoring role to ensure the treatments and
controls are in compliance with the relevant regulations. We also
evaluate our subcontractors’ performance in environmental
aspects.

The Group has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions
set out in the ESG Reporting Guide for the reporting period.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

EEMRTME

Following the discussion with our senior management and HfIKHESAETIEBLREKAEWE H CHEpHEKE
operational staff, we have identified the ESG issues relevant to the EHBBEMESGEE @ WiEBREEMBRIESGE B H &K
Group, the identified ESG issues have been assessed by I FBEHETE ASHEE RAEENERENE
considering their materiality and importance to our principle of KM FIAFEE - TRITREE BEENESGEE
activities, stakeholders as well as the Group. The ESG issues

considered to be material are listed below:

ESG aspects as set forth in
the ESG Reporting Guide
ESG ¥ &5 1ES| TR ESG B H

Material ESG issues
EZESGEER

A. Environmental
RiB
A1 Emissions

BEm

A2 Use of resources
BEiR{E A

A3 The environment and natural resources
RIERARANEIR

B. Social

e

B1 Employment
=2

B2 Health and safety
f@Ei%a

B3 Development and training
ELEYSe=El

B4 Labour standards
4 TR

B5 Supply chain management
HrEEeER

B6 Product responsibility

EmEE
B7 Anti-corruption
k&S
B8 Community investment

HERE

e Emission from electricity and paper usage
RE KRBT B Y

e Non-hazardous solid waste emission
EEE R

e FElectricity usage
AT

e Measures in reducing environmental impact
WMOREBEZ BN

e Labour practices
BIER
e Workplace health and safety
TERENRERERZ S
e Staff development and training
8 TR &E
e Anti-child and forced labour
RET&%I4T
e Supplier management
HEmER
e Product and service responsibility, quality assurance, customer service,
safeguarding customer assets
EmMREEE BERE TPRE REEFEE
e Anti-corruption policy
REFBE
e Community involvement
o]
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STAKEHOLDERS FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on their ESG
concerns. Readers are welcome to share their views with the
Group at email address: ESG@ibi.com.hk

A.

66

Environmental

Our Group companies, 1Bl Limited and IBI Projects Limited,
have ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management Systems
Certification which is an internationally recognised standard
for the development of policies and procedures which deal
with the environmental aspects of a business’s practices. Our
Group is in compliance with these international standards and
aims to act and conduct our business in a socially and
environmentally responsible manner.

Our Group pursues minimum environmental compliance
prosecutions. During the reporting year, we have only 2
(2018: 1) cases of environmental prosecution regarding
construction dust control and drilling at night. We will
continue to do our best for the environment.

NEEEERR

AEFEBCON ZEFERBESEHESGHEMEBIREE
B MENEE S BB (FEHHIE - ESGibi.com.hk)
ROKSHAEBRNEE -

A.

BIR

K& [ jE T A A 1Bl Limited & IBI Projects Limited
#AISO 14001 : 2015 R B EHE XRFE - 1t
i E D FEIRIRBUR MR FF R BIBR R A (R 2 o ARE
BEEBEZSEBREE  WBHUETEERIREE
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Our Group does not directly deal with hazardous wastes on AEEVEEERERMEEMBNEEREY -
our construction sites but we provide training and guidelines BeREFERIEREEAEDBEIREE| RiEE
to our subcontractors on a project by project basis and WEEE DB EEN T EREERMNES -

monitor the subcontractors to follow the requirements with
reference to the following legislation and regulations:

Category Relevant laws and regulations
Ehl HEEERER
General: > Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Cap. 499)
LS CRIBEZ BT HIEOINFE499F)
> Hong Kong Planning Standards and Guidelines
BB BIR R
Alir: > Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311)
=R (ERGREHERINEIIE)
> Hong Kong Air Quality Objectives
BEATERERER
> Air Pollution Control (Construction Dust) Regulation (Cap. 311R)
(ERREH (REIREERR)RONEIIIRE)
Water: > Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358)
K ORFRE RGN 368 &)
> Water Quality Objectives
K E RS
Waste: > Summary Offences Ordinance (Cap. 228)
REY) - (EHRFETFRGINE228F)
> Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59)
(IR TELEGDINEIE)
>  Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354)
CREYRERDINEIB4E)
> Public Cleansing and Prevention of Nuisances (Regional Council) By-Law
(Cap. 132BJ)
(RRBFRYI LT (BEmHE) AN E132BIE)
> Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Cap. 132)
(CAREERTEIERINE132F)
> Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulations (Cap. 354C)
CBEMRE (L2EM) (—R)HRFIN(FEI54CE)
> Practice Note for Authorized Persons 144: Control of Environmental

Nuisance from Construction Sites (August 1997)
RAIANTEEBZ R 144 - EHREMBRERIFBENZE (1997 F8 A)

1Bl Group Holdings Limited 67
2018/2019 F [ W&




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HSRERRE

68

A.1. Emissions

The major source of air emissions that are directly
generated by our Group of companies is the indirect
energy emission resulting from the disposal of non-
hazardous wastes and the use of electricity at our office
and project site offices. In order to reduce our carbon
footprint, we have implemented the measures listed in
the “A.2. Use of resources” section.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous waste.

The Group has closely monitored the disposal of the
construction wastes to ensure the waste treatment
complies with the local regulations and minimise
unnecessary construction waste. The Group considers
the hazardous waste generated during the Group’s
operations is minimal. Our operating activities are
generally in office buildings and the type of works
carried out does not directly lead to the generation of
hazardous waste. Hazardous waste generated by
subcontractors at the construction sites are primarily
paint cans and florescent lamp tubes. Subcontractors
are required to comply with a set of waste management
procedures for handling hazardous and non-hazardous
waste, which must be collected and disposed of by
qualified and licensed waste collectors in accordance
with the applicable regulations. We also minimise paper
waste by recycling paper.

During the reporting period, we have collected and
recycled 0.163 tonnes of paper used in office.
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The following tables show the greenhouse gas (“GHG”)

TRIIFHEMANR B S HEESHAERE

IJ|

emissions and wastes disposal we have recorded ([BERE DR EEYRE -
during the reporting period:
Emission Indicators 2019 2018
B IEE —E-NF —N\&F
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) B (Sl =
(tonnes CO,e)* (-S| tixEE)*
— Electricity — &N 52.70 50.88
Other emissions (Scope 3) (tonnes CO,e)  E At i) (S =
( ﬁﬁ %'ﬂ: U\EE! i
— Paper consumption — #RREHE 13.60 13.76
Total emission (tonnes CO,e) BHEmE (W —_EtiE=E) 66.3 64.64
Total emission per floor area (tonnes/ EmmETENEERE
sq.ft.) (Mg, EHR) 0.01 0.01
Total emission per employee BB TFTEMBENRE
(tonnes/employes) (W, 8T) 0.66 0.66
# The guidance for reporting on GHG emissions set out # EXFEEARERERBEYERAIIES| T A

above is based on the EPD’s “Guidelines to Account for

BETRENREREZEMORRE(EER

and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals £y (B FEXALAR)NBEEREHN
for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional MRz E R E55) BEAE -
Purposes) in Hong Kong” issued by Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department and Environmental
Protection Department.
Waste types 2019 2018
EEYER —E-N1EF —Z=—)\F
Total non-hazardous construction EEFEEREYES (1)
waste (tonnes) 664.65 3,161.24
Paper consumption (tonnes) HoRIEFEE (W) 2.83 2.87
Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes) EEEYES () 667.48 3,164.11
Total waste per construction project RERIBEFENREYASE
(tonnes/project) (W, 188 ) 44.5 186.12
Total waste per revenue (tonnes/ BN SETERNEYREE
million dollar) (W8, "B&T) 1.12 5.53

Our emission indicators have remained stable
compared to the previous year while our figures for
waste have significantly decreased. Total non-
hazardous waste in 2019 have reduced by more than
78.9% compared to the year 2018. This was mainly
due to the significant amount of non-hazardous waste
produced by a large hotel project during 2018.

FEHR_ZT—

EEFMEL - RANFRDERERRT
M & ¥ 77 T8 0 SR AN A B8 T K
78.9% -
[ERBELX T RERZEY -

—E-NF

B-E-NERSBB
NER—BRE
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A.2. Use of resources
Office and site office management

We have procedures in place for our employees to
follow in order to reduce the amount of resources and
electricity used by and emissions generated from
appliances, electrical equipment and lighting that we
use in our offices.

> Use of LED and T5 Fluorescent tubes instead of
incandescent light bulbs;

> Use of a master switch to turn off office
equipment and lighting during non-office hours;

> Purchase of environmentally friendly electronic
appliances;

> Purchase motion sensors for the lighting to save
electricity in the office;

> Provide recycle bins in the office area;

> Use of e statement and e communication instead
of printing where applicable;

> Post reminders in the pantry to encourage our
staff to use water efficiently; and

> Post green notes near photocopiers to encourage
our staff to think before they print, print double-
sided and reuse single-sided printed paper.

The implementation of the above procedures have lead
to a stable water, electricity and paper consumption in
our offices.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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Construction sites management

Our Group understands the importance of resources
and have mechanisms in place to use the resources
more efficiently. We provide proper training to staff,
subcontractors and site workers on how to use the
equipment and materials in a safe, productive and
efficient manner. New staff members are supplied with
training upon joining our Group while current staff are
supplied with refresher training approximately every six
months.

We encourage our subcontractors to be mindful when
carrying out their duties so as to reduce waste and
welcome any suggestions on managing or reducing
waste at the construction sites. We budget and buy
materials on as-needed basis to avoid over purchasing
of materials and to efficiently reduce the wastage at the
construction sites. We encourage our subcontractors
to continue using the remaining materials in future
projects to minimise the overall wastage at the
construction sites.
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Water usage

Based on the business nature, the Group has not
identified any issue in sourcing water. The water
consumption is limited to the water usage in the office
which is supplied by the landlord of the properties and
not by the Group, thus water usage is considered to
have minimal effect to our business operation. The
Group will continue to enforce prevention control by
encouraging all staff to follow the water saving practice
as set by the Group.

The use of packaging materials for finished products is
not applicable to our Group due to its business nature.

We are dedicated to using the resources efficiently in
our operation. The electricity consumed in our Hong
Kong office is our key energy consumption. The
consumption data during the reporting period are
shown in following table respectively:

Ak

HEREBME - AEBERERGKR LI &%

BRAEMEE - KERRHAZEAK AR

F7KEBIREEMIEASEFHIE - R AK

BELSHEBLENTEEN - AREHE

BT EEE R TBEAKE S EREE MK
B - AR ISR IART RS o

ENEBHEE  pEKRERE
BRARAEHE -

PR T

BRBOIREBLETERERER - 1M
MEERERIEREBEMAEAE - RN
S HIR R AER B REBURHN T K ¢

Energy Consumption 2019 2018
RERHFE —E-hEF —E—N\F
Total electricity consumption (kwh) BEREEE( ?EB—?) 66,713 64,407
Total electricity consumption per REMDETENEREES

floor area (kwh/sq.ft.) # (FTRE FHR) 9.14 8.83
Total electricity consumption REIHENEKEES

per employee (kwh/employee) (TRE EBTI) 667 657

# The guidance for reporting on GHG emissions set out # EXAEAMREREREBYRAE %l)’ﬁLM%

above is based on the EPD’s “Guidelines to Account for
and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals
for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purposes) in Hong Kong” issued by Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department and Environmental
Protection Department.

Qur overall energy consumption level remained
consistent in 2019 as compared to the year 2018.
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A.3. The Environment and Natural Resources

Pollution control guideline

We provide guidance, briefing and training to sub-
contractors and site workers with reference to the Air
Pollution Control Ordinance and Water Pollution Control
Ordinance and its subsidiary regulations in Hong Kong.

We do not directly deal with the physical construction
work but we have project managers in charge to
monitor the air pollution and waste water treatment to
ensure it is in compliance with the regulations. We also
implement an environmental management system for
every project to encourage the subcontractors to use
appropriate pollution prevention measures before
construction work commences to minimise the adverse
impacts to air pollution and water quality.

We set appropriate air pollution control system
measures on site and waste water treatment
procedures for our subcontractors and our site
managers, safety and environmental officers and
foremen are responsible to carry out site inspection
procedures to monitor the performance of the
subcontractors and to present their feedback during
the evaluation process.

Waste management guideline — Hazardous and non-
hazardous waste

Our waste management plan controls our daily working
activities by controlling the categories of Reduction,
Avoidance, Recycling and Reusing and Disposal.

We ensure that we reduce waste through increasing
our efficiency, avoiding over purchasing of materials
and other methods in order to limit the amount of waste
that is generated during the course of our refurbishment
services.

Any waste that is hazardous is treated carefully and
disposed of properly by subcontractors. We ensure
registered chemical waste collectors which are
approved by EPD are used by subcontractors and have
a procedure to monitor the disposal circumstances to
ensure that it is safe to the public and in compliance
with the regulations.
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In relation to the non-hazardous waste, our Group has
a system in place to record the quantities of different
wastes that are disposed. We separate recyclable
waste into four categories namely: metal, paper, plastic
and aluminum. We temporarily store our waste at a
designated area and put them into separate containers
which are suitable for holding the waste.

We dispose the waste off-site as soon as practicable in
order to optimise the storage space we have on-site.
We always maintain good housekeeping in the storage
area and we ensure that we handle all waste properly.
We plan each project to ensure that the issue of waste,
and its proper handling and disposal, is taken into
account and identify the disposal company we can use
to help us with the disposal.

Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design
(“LEED”) Projects

We have in the past engaged in a number of LEED
projects with our customers and have experience in
these types of projects. During the reporting period, we
have completed 2 LEED projects (2018: 2) for our
customers. LEED projects are a popular green building
certification aimed at helping our customers who
choose to have LEED certification to be environmentally
responsible and use resources efficiently in their
refurbishment, redecoration design and implementation.
The LEED certification includes a rating system for
different aspects such as construction, operation and
design. We offer our customers LEED design and
implementation services should they wish to have LEED
certification as part of our refurbishment services. LEED
has different certification levels namely: Certified, Silver,
Gold and Platinum based on allocating points on the
human benefits and potential environmental impacts.
The higher the rating, the better the design meets the
different LEED requirements.
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Social

B.1. Employment

Our Group understands the importance of the impact
that employees have on the Group and our reputation
and aims to provide our employees with a happy,
healthy and safe working environment. As at 31 March
2019, approximately 16% (2018: 15%) of our
employees had worked for over 5 years and
approximately 21% (2018: 23%) of our employees had
worked for more than 10 years in the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Staff stability

’\

BETREM

21%

16%

63%

Our staff handbook is well established and issued to all
staff for their reference pertaining to office rules and
benefits such as typhoon arrangements, annual leave,
working hours, office attire, jury duty, salary and lunch
hours as well as other rules and benefits. We provide
employees with Health and Safety and other
Developmental Training as well as having proper
whistleblowing procedures in place for our employees
to follow without fear of reprisal or receiving any
negative feedback.

We are dedicated to offering equal opportunities and a
fair and diverse work environment in our employment
practices. Our recruitment process is non-
discriminatory and is solely based on the employees’
performance, experience and skills.
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B.2.

Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their
job nature, qualifications and experience. Salaries are
subject to an annual review that is based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors. We
also encourage internal promotion and a variety of job
opportunities is offered to the existing staff when they
arise.

In addition to the statutory holidays, the Group satisfies
the special needs of employees through a
comprehensive leave system, providing marriage leave,
compassionate leave and paternity leave.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

Health and Safety

Our Group companies, IBI Limited and IBI Projects
Limited, are OHSAS 18001:2007 Occupational Health
& Safety Management Systems Certified. This
certification sets out Occupational Health and Safety
Requirements and Best Practices. OHSAS 18001 is a
framework that sets out a range of standards that can
help our Group to put controls policies and procedures
in place to achieve good working conditions and
workplace health and safety. This framework is
internationally recognised as setting best practices and
provide certified companies with a range of benefits
such as identifying hazards and how to manage them,
creating good working conditions, reducing work place
accidents and engaging and motivating staff. We
understand the importance of Occupational Health and
Safety and aim to continually improve, reduce
workplace hazards, increase employee motivation and
be in compliance with OHSAS 18001 standards. For
details on training related to health and safety, please
refer to “B.3. Development and Training” below.
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We provide sufficient safety training to subcontractor
workers to ensure that they work with consciousness
and knowledge of safety. The training contents include AR BIEM BT 2R M EEREE -
site safety introduction and proper usage of equipment. TEERREBEMAESBEE LAEENZEET
The following shows the details of our safety training of HE o

our subcontractor workers.

Safety Training Z 23

3,929 hours
3,929/ EF

4,880 persons
4,880F At

We provide staff with a modern, clean breakout area
which includes exercise bikes, showers, sofas, TV,
pantry and dining area in the head office. Further, the
Group also provides staff with safety and health training
as well as regular Employee Safety and Health memos
for their reference. The safety memo is for the benefit of
our staff to ensure that they use the office equipment
safely and that there is minimal chance of occupational
hazards taking place in our offices.

Apart from training, benefits and safeguards we have
for employees, we also advocate a healthy work-life
balance for all employees. We have team building and
charity events such as war game day, a day with Food
Angel, Occupational Stress and Mental Health
Workship, annual cocktail party and annual Christmas
party, as well as adhoc celebration lunches when we
are awarded, or completed, a project we take pride in.
We have quite a number of long serving staff and we
give recognition and thanks to our loyal staff for their
years of hard dedication, loyal service and positive
contribution to our Group.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
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B.3. Development and Training

We provide comprehensive Health and Safety training
that includes, but not limited to, induction to the
Group’s safety system and identification of their safety
duties, group safety policy and updates on changes to
legislations and regulations to all new staff when they
join us and to all regular staff on a bi-yearly basis to
ensure they understand the importance of safety and
how to operate the machines and keep the site clear of
hazards. We also have a Safety and Environmental
Officer in charge to oversee the site and ensure that it is
safe for staff members to carry out their daily duties.
We have an Environmental Management Plan (EMP) for
our refurbishment work which will be followed by all
team members, and the Safety and Environmental
Officer helps to supervise and monitor the
implementation of the EMP. These plans, procedures
and policies are in place to ensure we provide a safe
working environment and protect our employees from
hazards.

The following shows the details of our Health and
Safety training for our office and site staff:

Staff Training & T %3

715 persons
7158 AL
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Labour Standards

We have an Equal Opportunity Policy in place which
explains our policy on having a work environment that
is free of discrimination and that all employees have
equal opportunity regardless of age, marital status,
pregnancy status, race and religion. We advocate a
work-life balance at the workplace and managers are
available to communicate with the staff to ensure the
staff to raise their concerns or suggestions for
management’s consideration.

Our Group also has an Anti Child and Forced Labour
Policy for our Companies, employees, suppliers and
subcontractors to follow. We do not employ or
advocate the employment of children or of people who
are forced to work. All workers are employed on a
voluntary basis with agreed terms and are not forced or
coerced into working for our Group.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to preventing
child and forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

The Group maintains an approved suppliers and
subcontractor list. We perform assessment on new
suppliers and subcontractors and continue the
evaluation on an ongoing basis. We understand the
importance of environmental protection and we
encourage our suppliers and subcontractors to follow
our environmental management system.

We provide training and guidance to our subcontractors
for every project including our environmental
management system and relevant guidelines. All
subcontractors and suppliers are rated after the
completion of each job by our Group’s Tendering
Director, based on feedback from the project staffs
records, which are kept for our staffs’ reference. The
rating is based on numerous aspects such as quality,
safety, environmental and social risk, health and other
aspects. We further perform annual review on our
suppliers and subcontractors’ performance. We rate
and discuss their performance in different aspects
including price, quality, delivery, health and safety, as
well as environmental and social aspects. The
evaluation record serves as the starting point to our
selection of subcontractors for our future projects.
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B.6. Product Responsibility

Our Group companies, IBI Limited and IBI Projects
Limited, have ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management
Systems Certification. This certification is an
internationally recognised qualification relating to
product quality and quality management systems.
There are quality principles relating to customer focus,
leadership, engagement of people, process approach,
improvement, evidence-based decision making and
relationship management. We take the quality of our
project delivery seriously and act in accordance with
the ISO principles and aim to ensure to continue have
high customer satisfaction and meet customer
expectations. The ISO 9001 helps to give us guidance
on best practices and policies for us to use to ensure
that our Quality Management Systems are maintained
at a high standard and that we can continue to make
improvements on customer satisfaction, employee
motivation and other current practices.

Our Group takes our obligation to customers seriously
and aims to continue delivering high quality fitting out
and A&A services for customers across the region. We
engage with our customers and ask for feedback from
each project. We work with our customers to deliver
desired results and strive to maintain a high degree of
customers’ satisfaction. Our Group’s Directors are in
charge of making sure that we can meet our
customers’ requirements in areas such as quality,
environmental concerns, safety, cost, time schedule,
customer data protection and customer privacy. We
ensure that all customer data is used and kept in strict
confidence in accordance with our customers’
requirements.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to services provided and methods of redress.
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B.7. Anti-Corruption

QOur Group implements an Anti-Corruption and
Whistleblowing Policy that states any bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering behaviour will not be
tolerated by the Group. Our Group and employees are
(i) prohibited from paying or receiving a bribe of any
kind; (ii) prohibited from giving or offering anything of
value to a public official; (i) required to observe the
Group’s guidelines in relation to the giving and receiving
of gifts and hospitality; and (iv) required to fully comply
with the applicable laws and regulations relating to anti-
money laundering and terrorist financing.

We provide our staff with proper whistleblowing
channels so that they can raise concerns when needed,
without fear of reprisal or any negative impacts.

We encourage our employees to voice out their opinion
and our Group will not take any negative action against
staff for voicing out their concerns through the proper
whistleblowing channels. Our Group fully supports
employees to raise concerns in good faith and the
mentioned issue will be discussed by management and
dealt within a professional and appropriate manner.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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B.8. Community Investment

The Group cares for the youth and those who are less
fortunate in society and we aim to do our part in
supporting the local community by making donations
and supporting local charities. We have provided
internship to students from City University of Hong
Kong and participated in the student Industrial
Attachment Programme ran by the Hong Kong Institute
of Vocational Education (IVE) every year. We share our
experiences to the students and provide an opportunity
for them to gain working experience to help them to
plan their career. During the year ended 31 March
2019, we have also supported a number of charities
including Food Angel, the Lighthouse Club Hong Kong
and the Kowloon Rugby Club. We also encourage our
employees to contribute to charities with one of our
staff achieving 100 hours of volunteer service during
2018 achieving a Silver Award for Volunteer Service
from the Social Welfare Department of Hong Kong. We
will continue to do our part to help those who are in
need and are less fortunate in society by making further
future donations and encouraging staff to get involved
in charity works.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBE RS

|IBDO

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
IBI GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of IBI Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 172, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3(1BI GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
SRR
(REASHSTMA LA BRLAF])

=R

% B # % FE89E1728 AT #IBI Group Holdings
Limited (B AR )) REMB AR (5E [ BEE]) LR
AHBHRE  ETRBER - Z-NE=ZA=1+—08%
EHBHAREEEZA EFENGEBRENEMEE
W=k RERREHRREERENERAREEY
BREAMT  BREEZSHECREE -

BERR HAMBHRRCRETEEHNAS([FE
BEEAAE]) RHENEEMEHREEL ((FBUBERE
BEADEEATFHRR BEXKER-_FT-NF=H
=+ BANEEUBRRAARBEZA FFEOERA
BRAMGEARERE  YEEBREB QKON E
REHRmEL -

SRER

EERBEESTMASEMNBEEAER(EEE
FHER D) EITEZ - AR FELT BEENETHEES
MIERN BRI EREE M BBRRAENEE] —
- SR - RIBBFBSHMAGHN(EXGTRNE
A TR BEFBUN E5E YSEREST
ARTTEMERRE - BFHE  BSMESEERE
EREMEENREENEREHER -

1Bl Group Holdings Limited 83
2018/2019F E# s



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recognition of contract revenue

Refer to notes 4(j), 5()) and 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group recognised revenue from provision of renovation
services as a main contractor for property projects in the private
sector in Hong Kong and Macau (the “Construction Services”)
of approximately HK$593,448,000 for the year ended 31 March
2019.

The Group recognises revenue from Construction Services
according to the Group’s management’s estimation of the total
outcome of the construction contracts as well as the percentage of
completion of the Construction Services which requires the
estimation of contract costs of each contract. Contract costs of
individual contracts are determined based on budget of the
contract which was prepared by the management. The recognition
of revenue and the estimation of the outcome of construction
contracts require significant management judgement, in particular
with respect to estimating the cost to complete and the amounts of
variations and claims to be recognised.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s recognition of contract
revenue included:

° Comparing contract sum and budgeted contract costs to
respective signed contracts and approved budgets on a
sample basis;

° Discussing with the management of the Group and testing
the supporting evidence to evaluate the reasonableness of
the management’s estimation of the budgeted contract
costs;
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° Checking the existence and valuation of variations to
correspondences with customers on a sample basis; and

° Obtaining an understanding from management of the Group
about how the approved budgets were prepared and the
respective stage of completion were determined.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

HAEEFARASHRRNBEENRMAELE
FHERF MR EN SR -

HEERABELESTEARNRE M IFL &R
WREPMEMNEFTERE  BEEEFHEESEE
SENBRENERTETME M A LSRN
Y BEEENFELERLNELEBTARE - HE
ERRFHEERTHEEN BB LEELBEIR
SFHIRFEAEIBFEE P BRRPHMERRKE -
HERBRESE AEBITESENER - BENE
wIEREBEZBE RS B MBS ER R
e M REFHHBERAELER EKEE

AHEREMHREANEREHRAN - BERAT
BRBEEERN  UWREAMBHREARETERB
MERE 5 R FEF

F BEEEANERIEXBEBOMBERERT
RIMEENEERE  UEHGESUBRRER
BER -BFAEKEENNNR  BEBERWT -
BEEREZERALZLHEE -

EEMRLESGH (HREE) B RNER - 55
THREABRRETEE  RERNOATEAR
SHBT2 AR B A0 (I A P BB EEIRIRLK -

1Bl Group Holdings Limited 87
2018/2019F E# s



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B RS

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Choi Man On
Practising Certificate number: P02410

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SERERkEMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FaE FET FAT
Revenue W %5 7 593,448 580,964
Cost of sales SHE AN (541,717) (527,783)
Gross profit ES| 51,731 53,181
Other income and gain HA U A KMz 8 801 663
Administrative and other operating TR REMEER
expenses (27,779) (81,280)
Profit before income tax expense BRETEH B X AT R 9 24,753 22,564
Income tax expense PR1GBIR 10 (3,901) (4,389)
Profit and total comprehensive FRRFNREZEB AL
income for the year 20,852 18,175
Earnings per share: HRER : 13
Basic and diluted (HK Cents) AR R #5E (GBI 2.6 2.3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR B AR R &
As at 37 March 2079
R-ZE-—NF=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT—)\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo FHET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMERE 14 419 1,316
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BHEE 15 190,284 -
Amounts due from customers for EREFRAHITIERIE
contract work 15 - 93,477
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H W8 16 40,632 42,868
Pledged deposits BHEBER 17 16,200 22,637
Tax recoverable BEE e 2 56
Cash and cash equivalents He RIS EEY 109,361 135,243
Total current assets MENEEBE 356,479 294,281
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables H 5 RAEMERFIE 18 222,536 153,250
Tax payables FETRLIA 855 1,692
Total current liabilities MEN B EARRE 223,391 154,942
Net current assets REEEFE 133,088 139,339
NET ASSETS EEFE 133,507 140,655
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital P& AN 19 8,000 8,000
Reserves ] 125,507 132,655
TOTAL EQUITY R 133,507 140,655
On behalf of directors REE=E

Neil David HOWARD
Director

EF
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Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

Share Share Merger Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
(V&S M43 E oA REZF et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THAT FHAT FHT THT
(Note 19) (Note (i) (Note (ii))
(FEE19) (P&E()) (B 3 (i)
At 1 April 2017 R-ZZ—+tF
MA—H 8,000 73,613 (13,511) 70,378 138,480
Profit and total comprehensive  FEREF R 2 EUA
income for the year 4azg - - - 18,175 18,175
Dividend declared and paid BEIR MRS
(Note 12) (Kizx12) - - - (16,000) (16,000)
At 31 March 2018 R=ZB-N\F
=A=+-—H 8,000 73,613 (13,511) 72,553 140,655
Profit and total comprehensive FREMEEBEWRA
income for the year B - - - 20,852 20,852
Dividend declared and paid BEIR&ETRRE
(Note 12) (FFzE12) - - - (28,000) (28,000
At 31 March 2019 R-E-h&
=B=+—H 8,000 73,613 (13,511) 65,405 138,507
Notes: B s
(i) Share premium (i) BiDRE

Share premium account of the Group represents the excess of the
proceeds received over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued.

(i) Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the difference between the investment

costs in subsidiaries and the nominal value of the issued share capital of
the Group’s subsidiaries.

(ii)

REERO S EREMEEGEB AR B EHTRMEE
EEB s o
BOtHREE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_TE-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF T—N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
5T FHET FHIT
Cash flows from operating activities RESTHIESRE
Profit before income tax expense B FT 15 %6 I 2 A& A 24,753 22,564
Adjustments for: AT B IERE
Depreciation e 1,099 1,149
Interest income 2 A (801) (663)
Operating profit before working capital changes & & & & &) jij 4% & i 7] 25,051 23,050
Increase in contract assets A éf?ia pill (64,175) -
Decrease in amounts due from customers BREFEHAE#HTIR
for contract work IR A - 27,223
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 R HMEW IR
receivables (=), m (30,396) 20,739
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other B 5 R EMEN IR
payables 2 CFi ) 69,286 (32,121)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 4L (Ff ﬂq ) SHiEE e (234) 38,891
Income tax paid EAIFT1F (4,684) (3,828)
Net cash (used in)/generated from ST E) (Fﬁ}fﬁ)/ BRE
operating activities HE (4,918) 35,063
Cash flows from investing activities REZTHEERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME MENLEE (202) (134)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BIEREFERUR L8 0) 6,437 (6,690)
Interest received 2 U F B 801 663
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETBHME(FFA)
investing activities R&FHE 7,036 (6,161)
Cash flows from financing activities BETHHEERE
Dividend paid ERRE 12 (28,000) (16,000)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEDARS R (28,000) (16,000)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and Iﬁ,ﬁ FREEEY
cash equivalents W), R (25,882) 12,902
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERESEEY
beginning of year 135,243 122,341
Cash and cash equivalents at FRACRESEEY
end of year 109,361 135,243
Analysis of the balances of cash and HEREESEEY
cash equivalents RS AT
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERS 109,361 135,243
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 6 April 2016 under
the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand
Cayman, KY1-9007, Cayman Islands. Its principal place of
business is located at 3/F, Bangkok Bank Building, 18
Bonham Strand West, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 14 October 2016 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are to act as a building
contractor focusing on providing renovation services as a
main contractor for property projects in the private sector in
Hong Kong and Macau.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018

Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

2.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

94

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
removing transition provision exemptions relating to
accounting periods that had already passed and were
therefore no longer applicable.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the periods to which the
transition provision exemptions related have passed.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures, clarifying that a Venture
Capital organisation’s permissible election to measure
its associates or joint ventures at fair value is made
separately for each associate or joint venture.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group is not a venture
capital organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—E-NF=A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not have
any cash-settled share-based payment transactions
and has no share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding tax.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

(i) Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments: (1)
classification and measurement; (2) impairment
and (3) hedge accounting. The adoption of
HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018 has resulted in
changes in accounting policies of the Group and
the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

96

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
the classification and measurements of financial
liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous
HKAS 39 categories for financial assets of held to
maturity financial assets, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
adoption of HKFRS 9 has no material impact on
the Group’s accounting policies related to
financial liabilities. The impact of HKFRS 9 on the
Group’s classification and measurement of
financial assets is set out below.

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade
receivables (that the trade receivables do not
contain a significant financing component in
accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall, at
initial recognition, measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs. A financial asset is classified
as: (i) financial assets at amortised cost
(“amortised costs”); (ii) financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI"); or (i) FVTPL (as defined in above). The
classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is
generally based on two criteria: (i) the business
model under which the financial asset is managed
and (ii) its contractual cash flow characteristics
(the “solely payments of principal and interest”
criterion, also known as “SPPI criterion”). Under
HKFRS 9, embedded derivatives are no longer
required to be separated from a host financial
asset. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument is
assessed as a whole for the classification.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if
it meets both of the following conditions and it
has not been designated as at FVTPL:

It is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that meet the SPPI criterion.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it
meets both of the following conditions and it has
not been designated as at FVTPL:

It is held within a business model whose
objective is to achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that meet the SPPI criterion.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

98

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. All other financial assets not
classified at amortised cost or FVOCI as
described above are classified as FVTPL. This
includes all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.

The following accounting policy is applied to the
Group’s financial assets as follow:

Amortised Financial assets at amortised
cost: cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest
method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

2. RPNBERMBRELERN(EBHBRS

2R 1) (&)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

The following table summarises the original
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and the
new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for
each class of the Group’s financial assets as at 1
April 2018:

Original classification

Financial assets under HKAS 39
REEBETTER
CHMEE EIENRESE

Trade and other receivables  Loans and receivables

B 5 N E A YA SRR
Pledged deposits Loans and receivables
EEAER SRR E
Cash and cash equivalents  Loans and receivables
RekBREEEY BRI

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same for the Group, the
carrying amounts for all liabilities at 1 April 2018
have not been impacted by the initial application
of HKFRS 9.

(@) RMHEBETEBUBREED — A
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()
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As at As at

1 April 2018 1 April 2018

New classification under under

under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9

RZB-N\F RZB-N\&F

REEBH MA—ARE MA—HRE

B EER EEREHER FEREREEL

EOHRMNH D E SE 395 TR £ 95 5l AR

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THET

Amortised cost 9,799 9,799
BHAA

Amortised cost 22,637 22,637
BHAA

Amortised cost 135,243 135,243
DN
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

100

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group’s impairment model by replacing the HKAS
39 “incurred loss model” to the “expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) model”. HKFRS 9 requires the
Group to recognised ECLs for trade and other
receivables, financial assets at amortised costs
and contract assets earlier than HKAS 39.
Pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents
are subject to ECLs model but the impairment is
immaterial for the current period.

Under HKFRS 9, the loss allowances are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12
months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12 months ECLs. The 12-months
ECLs is the portion of the lifetime ECLs that
results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs. When determining whether the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

102

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 90 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial
asset is more than 365 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Management has concluded that neither the new
requirements related to the classification and
measurement nor the requirements related to
impairment have any impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Impact of the ECLs model

As mentioned above, the Group applies the
HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECLs
which adopts a life time ECLs for all trade
receivables and contract assets. To measure the
ECLs, trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
contract assets have substantially the same risk
as the trade receivables.

No additional impairment for trade receivables
and contract assets as at 1 April 2018 are
recognised under HKFRS 9 as the amounts of
additional impairment measured under ECLs
model is immaterial.

Other financial assets at amortised cost of the
Group includes deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. Management considers the
probability of default is low on deposits and other
receivables since the counterparties are in good
credit quality and no historical default is noted.
Besides, management considers the probability
of default is low on pledged bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents since they are placed
at the financial institutions with good credit rating.
The Group has assessed and concluded that
impact of ECLs on trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents are insignificant as
at 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019.

RMBRMBRE
2R 1) (&)

ZA(ERMBRE

(@) RMHEBETEBUBREED — A
—E-N\FNA-HBER(E)

EBHBHEEREIS, — £MT A (M)
(i) EEERHEE)
EMEERREANEE

B _ESCPTA  ARRE R AR
BEENFORBIOETEMEES
EWHIA R A NEERBFRAEN
EEBEFENEREEBE - A&
EEREFREFEARANEENHR
R{EER R A A BERE D
BUBEHERBREEEER - aOE
ENEERREE S RUKIAE XK
MR -

BERBEREVERELERFIRH
“E-NFHA-ANEZENFA
REHEEMABBEINIE - RES/R
BRHBEEBREATENEINRE
TRWFERX -

AEEILEHEA ARV EMSRE
ERREE REMERIR - 2 EM
RITFEFALRE LR EEY - B
BER/ES MEM BN ELD
ARtRE  REARBERXSHFH
ERERRFABEYEEBOLCHE -
o - B IR A 2 A ERITERUA
EREFRBREFENFHNRNEERY
ERFRNYHEE  MRSEED
AIREMERIK - AEBE G I
RBER_ZE-N\FOA-BR-F
—NWF=A=t+—B BHEEEE
B8 ZRWGOR - e RE MR
B EERARTEFIALRE LIRS
FEYNTEMTRE -

1Bl Group Holdings Limited 103
2018/2019 F [ W&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_TE-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

104

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

()

Hedging accounting

Hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 has no impact
on the Group as the Group does not apply hedge
accounting in its hedging relationships.

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision
in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was generally
adopted without restating comparative
information. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new ECLs rules are
therefore not reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March
2018, but are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 April 2018.
This means that differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are
recognised in retained profits as at 1 April 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2018
does not reflect the requirements of HKFRS 9 but
rather those of HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. HMEBMEREERN(EBMERS
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) 28I ])(4&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 (@) BRMFTRETEBMBEREEN — 8

April 2018 (Continued)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)
(iv)  Transition (Continued)

The following assessments have been made on
the basis of the facts and circumstances that
existed at the date of initial application of HKFRS
9 (the “DIA”):

° The determination of the business model
within which a financial asset is held;

° The designation and revocation of previous
designations of certain financial assets and
financial liabilities as measured at FVTPL;
and

o The designation of certain investments in
equity investments not held for trading as at
FVOCI.

If an investment in a debt investment had low
credit risk at the DIA, then the Group has
assumed that the credit risk on the asset had not
increased significantly since its initial recognition.

—E-N\FNA-HBER(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_TE-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

106

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at the amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method without practical expedients.
The Group has recognised the cumulative effect of
initially applying HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at the date of initial
application (that is, 1 April 2018). As a result, the
financial information presented for 31 March 2018 has
not been restated.

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has applied accounting policy
which based on a five-step model as set out in HKFRS
15 to recognise revenue from contracts with customers.

The Group assessed the impacts of adopting HKFRS
15 on its consolidated financial statements. Based on
the assessment, the adoption of HKFRS 15 has no
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised for contracts with customers and no
adjustments to the opening balance of equity at 1 April
2018 have been made on the initial application of
HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

2. RWBRBMBRSE

%E\U_}) (IIE)

ZA(ERMBRE

(@) RMHEBETEBUBREED — A
—E-N\FNA-HBER(E)

EBUBHEEEREI1SH — REEFEHN

Customers (Continued) Bz (4E)
The following table summarised the impact of adopting TR RNE B SREERE 1550 E
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of REBRKR-_ZE— N\FUA—HWEE BB
financial position as at 1 April 2018: NERNFE
As at
31 March 2018 As at
under HKAS 18 1 April 2018
(as previously under
stated) Reclassification HKFRS 15
R=B-N\F
=A=+-AH R=ZB-N\F
REEBETER MA—ARE
E185R5IER BB BHREER
(REREZ5) BENOE E15H 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FET THET
Contract assets SBHEBE - 126,109 126,109
Amounts due from customers R EFMA N TIERT
for contract work 93,477 (93,477) -
Retention receivables FEU IR R 5RIE 32,632 (32,632) -
There was no material impact on the Group’s MERAEERE T —NE=A=+—H
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other IFEERSAEXREMEENSE 54

comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
change in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_TE-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

2.

(a)

April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Details of the new significant accounting policies and
the nature of the changes to previous accounting
policies in relation to the Group’s renovation services

are set out below:

Services

PR

Nature of the services, satisfaction of
performance obligations and payment terms

RBME ERENEERARER

RMBEBMBHRELEN((EBHBERS
2R 1) (&)

R BT BB BREED — B
“E-N\FONA-HEERE)

EBUBHEEEREISH — REEFEHN
By 22 ()

AEBERBEBOITTERNGTBRABR
BESTHRRESHNEEHIIMT -

Nature of change in accounting policy and
impact on 1 April 2018
RIB-\ENA-BNETHREPHERYE

Provision of renovation
services as a main
contractor
{EREAEHREEN
R
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The Group provides Construction Services to its
customers. The Group has determined that for
contracts with customers under provision of renovation
services as a main contractor, there is one performance
obligation, which is the provision of Construction
Services. The Group has determined that the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits of the
Group's performance and thus the Group concludes
that the service should be recognised over time.
Further, the Group determines that the Group’s
performance creates and enhances the properties
which the customers control during the course of work
under the terms of the contracts. Therefore, revenue
from these contracts are recognised over time using
input method. Invoices are issued according to
contractual terms and are usually payable between 14
to 60 days. Amounts not invoiced are presented as
contract assets.
FEERERFPRERERY - AREETIEREA
EEREBIREETNEFPA NP EEROEE -
FMRBERT - AEEET R PREKEREERR
SERAONNS ARARERREBRBERERE
BRI AEEETARERBANKIELR
BRPRERMBHTLENNDE - At ZF4
HEh R ERE NERREER - BRANERFA
BE MEFHAENT14260R - RAAZEENS
BRI RENEE -

HKFRS 15 did not result in significant impact on the
Group’s accounting policies. However, upon the
adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group has to made
reclassification from amounts due from customers for
contract work and retention receivables to contract
assets since under HKFRS 15, if there is any satisfied
performance obligation but where the entity does not
have an unconditional right to consideration, an entity
should recognise a contract asset.
EAUBREENE BRI BHAEENSHBEK
BREAYE - A RWBEBRBRELELF 15
o AREEBRRE PN N TRIERERR
BREENHREANEE  RARRBEBNBR
ERBEST  WEETMEENBNECEERY
AEBEGHGTE BRERASNEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

Amendments HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group had not
previously adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the
clarifications in this, its first year.

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment
Property — Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from
investment properties there must be a change in use
and provides guidance on making this determination.
The clarification states that a change of use will occur
when a property meets, or ceases to meet, the
definition of investment property and there is supporting
evidence that a change has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of
evidence in the standard as a non-exhaustive list,
thereby allowing for other forms of evidence to support
a transfer.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the clarified treatment is
consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously assessed transfers.
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e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_TE-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

110

(a)

(b)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining
the date of the transaction for determining an exchange
rate to use for transactions that involve advance
consideration paid or received in a foreign currency and
the recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability. The Interpretations specifies that the
date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part thereof) is the
date on which the entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the payment or receipt of advance consideration.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group has not paid or
received advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The adoption of other amendments has no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is
to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Leases'
Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associate
and Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
Business Combinations'

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements’

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
Taxes!

Amendments to HKAS 23,
Borrowing Costs'

Insurance Contracts®
Definition of a Business?

Definition of Material?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28

FE NI R

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
The amendments were originally intended to be effective for

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective date
has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments of the amendments continue to be permitted.

2. RPNBERMBRELERN(EBHBRS
2R 1) (&)

(b)

BB 1 R AE RV RSB T BB

BREER ()

BERAMBHMERAE 6% HE"

A5 (BRI BmE
REZE9)
—REFE23%

BERBERELER
LRMIEET

BAGEE
F19FRHER]

BAGT LR
F28RIIER]

BATKREER
—E-1F%
“T—tFEEB
RS

BERBRELER
“E-hFE
—E—+FEH
RFE

BRI R EER
—E-HFE
Bl S i)
SRRy

BATKREER
—E-1F%
“T—tFEE
RS

BRRBMERANETH

BRMBREEA
F3RAERT
BREEAF1RR
B g ER
F8RMERT

FIEREENTRENL

AEARmERENEMR
SHEIEET - WAEE

REEARRAZEE
MR E
BRMTRE A
ERACHE
FHEAH

BEPBREER
B HEHE]

BERH

BB G ER

F 125K 0BT -
FRSH
BB G ER

F 235 HOIET -
EERA

R A #4°
FHHTR?

EANTER?

ERMBRELIF 0% REFBABENAN

hER G
F 285 HOIERT

ENEE S N

RELEZHH
BELESRA

MZZ—NF—A— B2 &FRnaF SR
MNZZ-2F—F— R &R FE MR
—F— A— Rz &AM FE IR AR
ZEER]REIN T F— A — B2 &R

HARIAERN - MR EREREHEE B « R BRI

HEERTER -

1Bl Group Holdings Limited

1M1

2018/2019 F E



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_TE-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

112

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases “and related interpretations,
introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a
lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use
asset and interest on the lease liability, and also
classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on
a present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments
to be made in optional periods if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the
lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the lease.
This accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

As set out in Note 21 below, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
of the Group in respect of office premises and
warehouse as at 31 March 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$350,000. The directors of the
Company do not expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as
compared with the current accounting policy would
result in significant impact on the Group’s financial
performance but it is expected that the certain portion
of these lease commitments will be required to be
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform
a more detailed assessment in order to determine the
new assets and liabilities arising from these operating
leases commitments after taking into account the
transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and the effects
of discounting.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

114

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to
reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity
shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have full
knowledge of all related information when making those
examinations. If the entity determines it is probable that
the tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
then the entity should measure current and deferred tax
in line with its tax filings. If the entity determines it is not
probable, then the uncertainty in the determination of
tax is reflected using either the “most likely amount” or
the “expected value” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Except as described above, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of other new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
other than IBI Macau Limited, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise stated.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

3. wEEE
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(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries
(Continued)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment and
fittings

5 years

3-5 years or over the
leases terms, whichever
the shorter

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount (Note 4(0)).

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from the continued use
of the asset.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018)

(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
measured at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A
trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.
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(c) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments measured at:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Debt investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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(c)

Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or loss.
All other equity instruments are classified as
FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs
on trade receivables, contract assets, financial
assets measured at amortised cost and debt
investments measured at FVOCI. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12
months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the end of reporting period; and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12 months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition.
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(c)

Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if the
contractual payments are more than 90 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial
asset is more than 365 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non-credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

(iv)

(v)

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and
are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the
equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018)

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets are
initially measure at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost, less any
identified impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(d)

Financial instruments (accounting policies

applied until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

—  granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
and directly reduces the carrying amount of
financial asset when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of financial
asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When any part of financial asset is
determined as uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for the relevant
financial asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(d)

(e)

()

Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

(v) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
(vi) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the

transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligations specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
demand deposits and short-term, high liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible into known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Operating leases

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

Income taxes
Income taxes comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
deductible for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when
they relate to items recognised directly in equity in
which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.
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(h)

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency’) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve. Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

U]

Foreign currency (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss on disposal.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Other employee entitlements

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to the employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSEHBEK(E)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Employee benefits (Continued) () EEENE)

(iv) Share-based payments (iv) LRGBEFELTF

132

Where share options are awarded to employees
and others providing similar services, the fair
value of the services received is measured by
reference to the fair value of the options at the
date of grant. Such fair value is recognised in
profit or loss over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase in the share option
reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at
the end of each reporting period so that,
ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting
conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all non-market
vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made
irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense
is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately
before and after the modification, is also
recognised in profit or loss over the remaining
vesting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where
the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liabilities
under the effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Revenue from Construction Services

Revenue from construction works transferred
over time is recognised progressively by reference
to the proportion of contract costs incurred to
date compared to expected total cost, which
depict the transfer of control of the goods or
services to the customer.

The Group recognises revenue over time only if it
can reasonably measure its progress toward
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation. However, if the Group cannot
reasonably measure the outcome but expects to
recover the costs incurred in satisfying the
performance obligation, then it recognises
revenue to the extent of the costs incurred.

(ii) Other income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the

principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

U]

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018)

(i) Revenue from Construction Services

Revenue from construction contracts is
recognised in accordance with the stage of
completion which is determined by reference to
the cost incurred up to the date of statement of
financial position as a percentage of total
estimated costs. Foreseeable losses from
contracts are fully provided for when they are
identified.

(ii) Other income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.

Construction contracts (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group
has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.
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U]

Construction contracts (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities (Continued)

Contract asset is recognised when the Group
completes the construction works under such services
contracts but yet certified by architects, surveyors or
other representatives appointed by customers. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which it
is invoiced to the customer. If the considerations
(including advances received from customers) exceeds
the revenue recognised to date under the input method
then the Group recognises a contract liability for the
difference.

Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred
to fulfil a contract when those costs meet all of the
following criteria:

(@ the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the cost relate. The asset is subject
to impairment review.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERETTBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Construction contracts (accounting policies (m) BEESHN(R=-ZE—N\F=A=+—HAE

applied until 31 March 2018)

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract
amount and appropriate amounts for variation orders,
claims and incentive payments. Contract costs
comprise direct materials, costs of subcontracting,
direct labour and an appropriate portion of variable and
fixed construction overheads.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and contract costs
associated with the construction contract are
recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of reporting period. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that will probably be
recoverable, and contract costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as amounts due from customers
for contract work.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as amounts due to customers for
contract work.

Under the stage completion method, the percentage of
contract margin to be recognised as profit at end of the
reporting period is determined as the ratio of contract
costs incurred at end of reporting period to the
expected final contract costs.

RBEETBER)

EHREERBEARNEEMNARE
/\1,\&72&1@] KIEH)EE S8 AZ’JW$@%
BEEOH DB E&%IM&T """"" P54
E%%ﬁf&ﬂ?‘%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ'} EEED -

ERESOMNGERER] EMFHR - BHEES
%’]ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂﬂlﬁn&é%’]ﬁ$ﬂ%ﬁ#ﬁiﬁyﬁié
KEB R TR R D R ER B R X -
ERESHNAERBAT Eih T MG E -
Wz RAIEE EAENE DR A Al se di Bl
KB T T ARERR - E AR AR H E AL
MERARXE -

ERONANBEEAAIEBEANKEEE
- RHE AR R R

M4 BEEA BRARNE B TR E &
EERBBEERE - RBSWRARIE
Fa K TIRHA -

fEERIBHEBE S CELESNRAIND 1

DHAHC R BREREAENE
FRAHTIZNE -
RIBRE SR - A T

MEHNRESHNBEDLL EE;EFjEA#& HR
BEELAR ,\ﬁﬁk$iﬁii‘ﬁiﬁﬂi?¥’m\“’7ﬁk$ﬁ’]tt? °

1Bl Group Holdings Limited
2018/2019 F [ W&

137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_TE-NF=A=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

138

(m) Construction contracts (accounting policies

(n)

(o)

applied until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

Retention monies, represented amounts of progress
billings which are receivables from customers or
payable to sub-contractors when conditions specified
in the contracts undertaken are satisfied, and are
included in the statements of financial position under
“Trade and other receivables” and “Trade and other
payables” respectively.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased. If the recoverable amount (i.e.
the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

Borrowings costs

Borrowings costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowings costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

4.

EXEHBE(E)

(o)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

140

(q) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

)

(i)

V)

(V)

)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BHEx—F

4.

~NF=ZA=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgement, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

4.
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142

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that have significant risks of resulting in material
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within next financial year are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Recognition of contract revenue

Contract revenue recognition on individual projects are
dependent on management’s estimation of the
progress of the satisfaction of performance obligations
of a construction contract over time, measuring using
input method, with reference to the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date to
the estimated total costs for the contracts. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and contract claims
prepared for each contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted contract income is determined in accordance
with the terms set out in the relevant contracts.
Budgeted contract costs which mainly comprise
subcontracting charges and cost of materials are
prepared by the management on the basis of
quotations from time to time provided by the major
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the management
conducts periodic reviews on the management budgets
by comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual
amounts incurred and the value of work performed as
certified by quantity surveyors where applicable.

Impairment of receivables

The measurement of impairment losses on receivables
requires judgment, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of receivables (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses wWhether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on receivables since initial recognition by
comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The executive directors of the Company, who are the chief
operating decision-makers of the Group, review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on reports reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company that are used to make strategy
decision.

Management regularly reviews the operating results from a
project-based perspective. The reportable operating segment
derives its revenue primarily from provision of renovation
services as a main contractor for property projects in the
private sector in Hong Kong and Macau. Accordingly, the
Group has only one business segment and no further analysis
of this single segment is considered necessary.

BEARETHERATTREENETER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE T NF=A=1—HIFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. IPIwmE (HE)
(a) Geographical information (a) tbigER
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas AREBEMBEETEHBERIGEE — FBEK
— Hong Kong and Macau. BT o
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TRIINEBBEREETE BB B@RELER
revenue from external customers within the scope of FA5REEMNRBINEE P HREN DT
HKFRS 15:

144

Hong Kong B 575,388 572,364

Macau JEPY 18,060 8,600
593,448 580,964

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TERIFNEBAEE IR EE ([8EER

non-current assets (“Specified non-current BEE )OI

assets’):

Hong Kong &5 419 1,313
Macau ! - 3
419 1,316
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. ZEW|E (&)
(b) Information about major customers (b) EEFTEEFHER
Revenue from major customers, where each of them KETEEFLFNUH(BEEZEEEAEEK
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue, are =AY 10% 8k A B) SEalan T ¢
set out below:
2019 2018
—E-—hEF —N\&
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Customer | BB 293,783 64,067
Customer I ZEI N/A ~EH 148,926
REVENUE 7. WH
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents W (AN EB MR XS IEERNELSBEARERDN
contract revenue from provision of renovation services as a IEHBHRENEOKE NEEBMREKERA
main contractor during the year. All the Group’s revenue is BEAEL) TR —EREBRNER -
derived from contracts with customers which is recognised
over time.
The Group has applied the practical expedient to its sales AREFBDHERERBNBESNEATITAE

contracts for Construction Services and therefore the below
information does not include information about revenue that
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts for Construction
Services that had an original expected duration of one year or
less.

As at 31 March 2019, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts was
approximately HK$116,395,000. This amount represents
revenue expected to be recognised in the future from
partially-completed long-term construction contracts. The
Group will recognise the expected revenue in future as the
project work is progressed, which is expected to occur over
the next 15 months.

SRR THRERATNEREBEAEEZNX
RIEHFHA—FRUTHERERKESHETH
RSB R ARYER K mEFR

RZZE-—NF=—A=+—0 EoE=r5E}E
BEHNBETHREBEHNEENRZIEREBENA
116395 00078 7T o It & EHIETEHRI 1A B 18 HERR 2R
BB THRAZEESOHKE - XEEBIZ
TREENRRERBINE » TEEFTHARR
15 1@ A RHETT ©

1Bl Group Holdings Limited
2018/2019 F [ W&

145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE T NF=A=1—HIFE

8.

146

OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

8. HtW ARz

Bank interest income

RITHSWA

801

663

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. [BFFEREE L ATSA

Profit before income tax expense is arrived after charging:

R PSR S AR R TR T oIS RIZZR -

Auditor’s remuneration % 85 il 57 Bl 900 850
Depreciation e 1,099 1,149
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: 8 TR (BIEESEHH) ¢
— Salaries and allowances — ¥4 NEaL 59,737 63,982
— Contributions on defined contribution — FEEIUGRIRGHEIH R
retirement plans 1,690 1,452
61,427 65,434
Minimum lease payments under EFEIR TRERERK
operating leases 2,697 3,014
Foreign exchange loss, net b 3 B 1R F 2R = 6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10.

The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

STATEMENTS

FriS iR <

HEBREMHEMEARERMEMEHAX SR8

15 -

represents:
2019 2018
—B-NF —E)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ENEATTE — BHBFEH
— tax for the year — FRHIE 3,961 4,411
— over provision in respect of prior years ~ — iB1F FF/E AR RE R (60) (22)
3,901 4,389
Current tax — overseas BNHARRIE — /850
— tax for the year — FRFIA = -
3,901 4,389

The Hong Kong Government gazetted the “Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 3) Ordinance 2018” on 29 March 2018
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime (the
“Regime”). Under the Regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated in accordance with the Regime. For the year
ended 31 March 2018, the provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax was calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profits for the year.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Macau and
with the short-term tax incentives granted by the Macau
Government, the Group’s subsidiary in Macau was subject to
complementary tax at the rate of 12% for taxable profits over
the tax threshold of MOP600,000 for the tax year ended 31
December 2018. The Macau Government has not yet
announced the tax threshold for the tax year ending 31
December 2019.

EEBRAR T N\F=A -+ LB TIEEM
(2018 F M7 (1&7T) (F35%) 1&PI) - 5l AFIFH
AR (TRBELD - RIBZGIE - @EREERN
E2REBATHENMNMERR8.25% M2E&EE
TEA LR R RO B R 15 75 16.6% °

BE_Z-NF=ZA=T—BLLEFE  FBNF
MOBRBZGEAE - BE-_FT—/\F=H
=t—BLLFE  FENEHRFAMGERD
M EY 16.5% 5T -

RIBRPIERDER MO A RE R RPIB T 45
MERTEEE  AEERMMEARNEE—
E-N\EF+_A=+—BHLUEBRBFE  AfHK
AR HE R PTHE 600,000 7T A B EERBOR A - 12
12% KB R NPT ISR T/ < RPIBUT M AR S ffh

(ZE T NFTA=T—BLEBBFEOR
Y s
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_TE-NF=A=1+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10.

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before income tax expense in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income as follows:

FrigwiRa < ()

FAMGHEGS ZEWERTREH A
A E SRR

2019 2018
—E-NF —ENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FAT
Profit before income tax expense f P15 H5 59 2 Bl A1 24,753 22,564
Tax charge calculated at Hong Kong profits 32278 F15 8 5 & 16.5% 5t E )
tax rate of 16.5% (2018:16.5%) BMERAY (ZE—)\F : 16.5%) 4,084 3,723
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for BARRE RS2
tax purposes (494) (558)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7N B] H1% 5 5 B 0 765 5 &
tax purposes 528 626
Effect of different tax rate of the subsidiary ~ FRPIE LRI E A T
operating in Macau TRABENTE (102) -
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE (60) (22)
Effect of the Regime ZHER TR (165) -
Tax effect of tax loss and other temporary ~ REERTIEE I8 R HAth
differences not recognised LR EBNMBETE 110 620
Income tax expense PSR 2 3,901 4,389

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had estimated unused tax
losses arising from the Group’s subsidiary in Macau of
approximately HK$2,127,000 (2018: HK$2,845,000) available
for offset against future profits. These tax losses are subject
to the final assessment by the tax authority in Macau. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams from
the Group’s subsidiary in Macau. The tax losses may be
carried forward for a period of three years from the year of
origination.

No deferred tax has been provided in the consolidated
financial statements as no other material temporary
differences had risen during the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments is disclosed as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2019

1. S5 ZSFMATIRSREERE

A

(a) E=HM

EEHMENT

BE-E-NE=A=+—BLEE

Contribution
Salaries, on defined
allowances contribution
and other Discretionary retirement
Fees benefits bonuses plans Total
BB
e 2HR B
ik Hit R M HE 5 by
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
5 T 7 5 7
Executive directors HiTEZE
Neil David HOWARD Neil David HOWARD 240 2,361 1,000 18 3,619
Steven Paul SMITHERS Steven Paul SMITHERS 240 2,241 1,000 18 3,499
Indepenclent non-executive
directors BUKHTEE
Richard Gareth WILLIAMS Richard Gareth WILLIAMS 240 - - - 240
Robert Peter ANDREWS Robert Peter ANDREWS 240 - - - 240
Lap Shek Eddie WONG TuA 240 - - - 240
Total st 1,200 4,602 2,000 36 1,838
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE T NF=A=1—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST 11. ESFM  EEFMALTERSREERE
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR N (&)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@) ESHME)
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-F-\F=ZA=+t—-HLFE

Executive directors HITEE
Neil David HOWARD Neil David HOWARD 240 2,217 1,000 18 3,535
Steven Paul SMITHERS Steven Paul SMITHERS 240 2,167 1,000 18 3,415
Independent non- BUFHITEE

executive directors
Richard Gareth WILLIAMS Richard Gareth WILLIAMS 240 - - - 240
Robert Peter ANDREWS Robert Peter ANDREWS 240 - - - 240
Lap Shek Eddie WONG VA 240 - - - 240
Total @t 1,200 4,434 2,000 36 7,670
During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no HEZ-—NFER-_ZE—\F=A=+—H
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as IEFE  AEEHBERES T EAHEH -
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as TERBE S MARE B K #) 42E) Sk E AR
compensation for loss of office. In addition, none of the AE I REEZZE—NFR=ZF—N
directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments FoA=t-HLEFEHEEEHEXRE
during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. EE A -
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST 11. EEFM  ESFMATRSREEE
N (4E)

PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

(b)

The five highest paid individuals for the year include two
(2018: two) directors. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2018: three) non-director highest paid individuals

for the year are as follows:

EERSHFMAL

TR AEEaFTHALIEEMA(ZF
—N\FMBR)EF-HEHB=ZRA(ZFT N
FZR)FEERIFTMALIRAFEN
T

2019 2018

—E-hF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 - E8E R E & F| 5,067 5,847
Contributions on defined contribution TFE R FURIRET IR

retirement plans 54 54

5,121 5,901

The number of non-director highest paid individuals
whose emoluments felt within the following bands for
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

HE_Z-—NFrR-_ZE—\F=ZA=+—H
EFE  HFHN T T SBEEMNIEEE RS H
B AT AZT -

2019 2018

—E2-NF —T-N\F

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

AE AEK

HK$Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 =702 1,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T £ 1,500,000 77T = -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T £ 2,000,000 77T 3 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000/%8 7T = 1
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The remaining highest paid individuals are directors of
the Company whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 11(a) above.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, none of the five highest paid individuals waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

Senior management’s emoluments
Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior

management who are not directors were within the
following bands:

1. S5 ZSFMATIRSREERE

(&)

(b)

(c)

TEREHMAL (E)

HSRBRSHFMALRARRES  EHFMR
EXHEE 1) A2 P D M Bk o

HE_Z—NFr_E—-\F=A=+—H
EFE  AEEBERAIAESTMA LT
A - 1EARE I AL S B 7 42
B EABEBAEE - N REBEZZ—1
ER_E-N\EFE=ZA=+—HIFEREH
S A TN E SR B REE A EH -

BREEETMH

ENHENIFEESREREXENHHN
FRyIEE:

2019 2018

—®-NEF —T—N\F

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

AE AZ

HK$NIl - HK$1,000,000 =702 1,000,000 87T - -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T £ 1,500,000 77T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T 2 2,000,000 /57T 3 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T £ 2,500,000/8 7T - 1
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BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS 12. K2
2019 2018
—g-nE  —T\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Interim dividend declared and paid BE IR MR ERAR S (BIRE ()
(Note (i) 8,000 8,000
Proposed final dividend (Note (i) R ORERRR B (M E (i) 12,000 20,000
20,000 28,000
Notes: Bi5E
0] The interim dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 0] HE_ZT-NF-A=-+—HLEVBFENFERE
March 2019 of HK 1.0 cent (2018: HK 1.0 cent) per ordinary share, REREBR1.0BI(ZZE—NF : 1.080) - Bl&
amounting to HK$8.0 million (2018: HK$8.0 million) was paid on HB0BEEBTL(ZZE—N\F 80EEBL) BN
18 January 2019. Z-NFE-A+NRIKR °
(i) The final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March (i) AAREREZEMBE_T—NF=A=+—HLH
2019 of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share, amounting to HK$12.0 BEERMSRAKREGREBI158W - BDaH
million has been proposed by the Directors of the Company and is 1208 8ET  HAGFARFRRNERRRBF K
subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company in the SHERFTIEE - RZE—NF=ZA=+—HEE
forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend declared IREAREAR M AERAR_E—NF=A=1+—H
subsequent to 31 March 2019 has not been recognised as a HEE-
liability as at 31 March 2019.
The final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March HE_ZT- \FZA=-+—HLEVBEFENORPKRE
2018 of HK2.5 cents per ordinary share, amounting to HK$20.0 FRLBER25BI(AEL200EEBT)IERF
million was paid on 18 October 2018 and was recognised in the —NE+ATNBERN TREE_ZT—-NF=A
year ended 31 March 2019. The final dividend in respect of the =t+—BLFEwR - BHE_ZT—+tHE=A=1+—8
financial year ended 31 March 2017 of HK1.0 cent per ordinary 1EIBUE R R HR AR B AR AR 1.078 1L (& £8.0
share, amounting to HK$8.0 million was paid on 18 October 2017 BEAT)ERZZE—tF+ATNABIERN - WHE
and was recognised in the year ended 31 March 2018. BT )\FZA=Zt+—BHULFEHER-
EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BRAF

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2019 is based on the profit attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$20,852,000 (2018:
approximately HK$18,175,000) and on the weighted average
number of 800,000,000 (2018: 800,000,000) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

Dilutive earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share because the Group has no dilutive potential shares
for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

HE-Z-NFZA=Z1+—BULEFENERER
AR THERAR A E A AR T4 20,852,000
BIT(ZZ—N\F : 418,175,000 L) K FAE
597 8 B N4 S 39 £0800,000,000 i (== — N
£ 800,000,000 %) 5+ & -

HRAEERBE T NEFR-_F-N\F=A
St BLEFEYEEEEERD  REBFE
HMEREERN G RERBFRER -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE

Cost AR

At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+tFMA—AR 11 5,937 5,948
Additions NE - 134 134
At 31 March 2018 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H 11 6,071 6,082
Additions INE - 202 202
Disposals e (11) (103) (114)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE—AF=A=+—H - 6,170 6,170
Accumulated depreciation ZItINE

At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+FMWA—H 5 3,612 3,617
Charge for the year FARRXZ 3 1,146 1,149
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\F=A=+—H 8 4,758 4,766
Charge for the year FRFAY 3 1,096 1,099
Disposals Ek= (11) (108) (114)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-hF=A=+—H - 5,751 5,751

Net carrying value REFE

At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=+—H - 419 419
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\FE=ZA=+—H 3 1,313 1,316
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15. CONTRACT ASSETS AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT
WORK

The following table sets out details of the contract assets and
amounts due from customers for contract work as at the end
of each reporting period:

. EHREEREREFNENIRENREA

TREBINERERERGNEERBKEFH
BRI TIZFRFE -

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FAT

Costs incurred to date plus recognised S EEERNKRAND ERET
profits less recognised losses BEERIBE 1,225,007 1,027,708
Less: Progress billings to date W IE ST REER (1,066,586) (934,231)
Add: Retention receivables (Note (i)) 0 EUREE BIE (B EE () 31,863 -
190,284 93,477
Contract assets BHEE 190,284 -
Amounts due from customers FEWE P RIE - 93,477
Contract liabilities aHaE = -
Amounts due to customers ENE P FRIA = -
190,284 93,477

Balances are reclassified from “amounts due from customers
for contract works” and “retention receivables” to “contract
assets” to be consistent with the terminology used under
HKFRS 15.

All contract assets/liabilities and amounts due from/to
customers for contract works are arisen from the provision of
renovation services. The changes in the contract assets for
the year were resulted from the pace of the progress of
particular projects and the timing of approval for progress
billing application for certain projects.

Note:

(i) As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s retention receivables were not
yet past due, in which approximately HK$2,934,000 were
expected to be recovered beyond twelve months after the end of
the reporting period.

REREAEEVBREENF1GHRAE AR
mem [EREEFPHNENIRENE] kRKRE
RBEIEFODBRRANEE] -

FARNAE, BERER HEPHAHTE
SRR BRI RS o 58 B K T
ERETERAMHIREERFEELBHSES
HENANAEBHED -

B -

0] RIZE—NEFEZA=+—8  AEENEKRERE
yREER - & 492,934,000 7078 #6715 B RS
HERE T ARYKE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_TE-NF=A=1+—HIFE

15. CONTRACT ASSETS AND AMOUNTS DUE 15. EHNEEREVREFNENIRERIE(E)
FROM CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT
WORK (CONTINUED)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of EEANEESHEMHEANIEERT -
contract assets are as follows:
Construction services BERY
The Group’s contract assets represent the Group’s right to REEBNSNEERAEERARERHEZE T
consideration for work completed but not yet billed to BRABZFHENIRKBRENET - 28
customers at the reporting date. The contract assets are R BEGHR  ANEEEBEE FEIRR
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become I AEEEREEFENSERTFRFHA
unconditional, that is, when the Group issue progress billings TREENERE -A4B7eHEEPLP,ESEIRE
to customers based certified amount agreed with customer. EERGENZTEEE s Z B (—K410.0%)
The contracts usually include a term for the customers to BERENNRAEANSBENBEA DL ALK -
hold up a portion, normally around 10.0%, from each ARNEFEEE N SRR ERNBFANER T2
progress and final payment until a particular percentage of EmmBawalg A nEE kS T ABNE
the total contract sum is reached. Such sum of money E G EHERFHERAIL -
withheld is referred to as retention money. This amount is
included in contract assets until the end of the retention
period as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment is
conditional on the Group’s work satisfactorily passing
inspection.
The Group’s contract liabilities represent advanced payment AREFRNANHBEEREEREP® R  MkzEIZE
received from customers while revenue is recognised based TREENEER -
on measure of progress.
16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. ES R HMEWFIE
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FAT
Trade receivables (Notes (i) and (ii)) B 5 W aE (BIFE ) K (i) 38,739 8,460
Retention receivables (Notes (i) and (iv)) e U AR BB 2R I8 (B (i) B2 (iv)) - 32,632
Deposits and other receivables e R H A U GRIE 1,498 1,339
Prepayments Tt RIE 395 437
40,632 42,868
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

0

(i

(i)

(V)

The credit period granted to customers on final and progress
billings is generally between 14 and 60 days from the invoice date.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowances) as at
the end of each reporting period based on the invoice date is as
follows:

16. EZ R HARURIE ()

3

)

BRYEPREFERTIRERROERH RN T3
ZAMEN14E60A -

REBREHR - BHREGR(NGREE) RERA
HMREOMTT

2019 2018

—2-neE —TNF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FHTT

Within 30 days 30HA 33,089 3,116
31-60 days 31&E60H 770 -
61-90 days 61290 H - 4,543
Over 90 days 90 H 4,880 801
38,739 8,460

The age analysis of trade receivables (net of allowances) as of the
end of reporting period that are not individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired is as follows:

BERSHEMRREALEER L LR RENE S E
Wokag (Fn i) mBRiR D AT a0 T

2019 2018

ZE-hEF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired BEAR 8 B TN R (A 33,089 6,775
Less than 1 month past due BHD 1 E A 770 716
1 to 3 months past due wHI1 = 3@ A 4,335 176
Over 3 months past due BEISE A 545 793
5,650 1,685

38,739 8,460

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired primarily
relate to the Group’s main customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believe
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there have not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s retention receivables were not
yet past due.

As at 31 March 2018, retention receivables of approximately
HK$7,818,000 were expected to be recovered beyond twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

BEREH TR R E RO B 5 MROR = B BT H SR
MR AR RETREEFER

CEHBEYERMENE S B RFRRS A ERNEEGE
BRIFEBRHENBYURFEH - ENBELR &
BERA  ARNEEERYEERNE - BERIDEK
BRAEHNE - MBARZSEHRIEDRERS -
ARER B L % AR A (IR & o

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—H  FEENELRERIE
= AR B

RZE-NF=ZA=+—H BYRRERELY
7,818,000/ 8 LIRHIKNIRERR 2 B+ —EALH
Yem e
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17.

18.

158

PLEDGED DEPOSITS 17. SHEAER
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FHET
Pledged deposits with a bank RIRTTHE EIRFHK = 1,467
Pledged deposits with an insurer RiRBE A RIH B R RF R 16,200 21,170
16,200 22,637

Pledged deposits are placed with a bank and an insurer as
securities for the performance bonds issued by the bank and
insurer to certain customers on their projects. The pledged
deposits will be released when the bank or insurer are
satisfied that no claims will arise from the projects under the
performance bonds.

EEMERTFRRRITRERAR] - FRZRTT
ERBARSRETEFPHNERRAZELNEOR
EOER - CEREFEFTHERBBRITHRR A A
EMERNRE THIEE TEELRER T LA -

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18. ES R HMENKIE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&IT
Trade payables (Note (i) B SN FIE (MFE)) 10,716 17,292
Accruals for costs of contract work BHTEKNAETE A 172,919 97,135
Retention payables (Note (ii)) FEAHRE 20 (B RE (i) 32,436 32,158
Other payables and accruals HAn e FB R ERTE A 6,465 6,665
222,536 153,250
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE—F—NF=A=1+—HIFZF

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18. E5 R H A B RRIE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Notes: Bz -
(i) The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, as 0] REMEER @ BHEMNRBEIZREZABHMEREROHT
at the end of each reporting period is as follows: wmr

0-30 days 0&30H 10,112 14,615
31-60 days 31E60H 408 2,225
61-90 days 61290H - 133
Over 90 days HBiE90 B 196 319

10,716 17,292
The credit period granted by suppliers is generally between 14 and HEBETHERE—MNTEEABHEN14E60
60 days from the invoice date and subcontractors is generally ARSERARTHERS —RAKZEFNRE14
within 14 days after receipt of payment from customers. AR -

(i)  As at 31 March 2019, retention payables of approximately i) WH-TE-NAF=ZA=+—8B ENREBREY
HK$7,542,000 (as at 2018: HK$4,005,000) were expected to be 7,542,000 % 7T (A == — \4F : 4,005,000 70) T8 A
settled beyond twelve months after the end of the reporting period. BREEHRz EE+ @R BER -

19. SHARE CAPITAL 19. R

The share capital as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 in the HBEVBRARATIRZZE—NERZZE—N\F

consolidated statement of financial position represented the —A=T—HHORTERAGNEEHITRE - 7F

issued share capital of the Company and as follows: BT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRAEEOTETLAL R
Authorised: EE 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR 800,000,000 800,000,000 8,000 8,000
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19. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

160

Note:

(@)

On 20 September 2016, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The Board of the
Company may, at its discretion, invite any eligible persons who
have made contributions to the Group to take up share options.
The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of all the shares in issue as at the date of the Listing
(i.e. a total of 80,000,000 shares).

Options granted shall be taken up upon payment of HK$1 as
consideration for the grant of option. Options may be exercised at
any time not exceeding a period of 10 years from the date which
the share option is deemed to be granted and accepted. The
subscription price is determined by the board of directors of the
Company, and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of (i)
the official closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer date; (i) the
average of the closing price of the shares as stated in daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (i) the nominal value of
a share.

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, no share options had been
granted since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and there
were no outstanding share options.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018/2019
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RZEB-RFALAZTH  ARRRNEEETE
((BRESE]) - ARFEESANERSEMNLY
AEBELEBNA SR A TABERME - BT
IR & ETRRNFE 17 BHRE ©

MERAERT BB T AT eI H BB TS MR 8 B |
R A TERBER LT RBOEEITROAE10%
(B4 80,000,000 %) °

EETEREERNIHERAERBEREREN1ET
TR AR - BIRERTBBENE AR RER
E BB T FHEERNTE  c RBERAARESY
BE BRBLRUTEERSE ()2 RRGN
BEQPRB SR RERIRERKTE i)
DREEREAHIIAEEXARBEIMETERESR
FrR U (E K (i) iR EE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

20. RESERVES 20. f#fE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REFBEGEETZEENHUA&SEIRESD
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set HWERENGEEREHRK - AR EARFEEER
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. REVEFRANESFBOT

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of reserves between the beginning and the end
of the year are set out below:

Share Retained
premium profits Total
v RE &R st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT

(Note (i)
(BRFEE )
As 1 April 2017 RZE—tFWEA—H 73,613 23,706 97,319
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENEEEWA LR
for the year - 19,631 19,631
Dividend declared and paid (Note 12) BEIRMEMAEE (F5E12) - (16,000) (16,000)
At 31 March 2018 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H 73,613 27,337 100,950
Profit and total comprehensive FREFREEBAEEE
income for the year - 19,883 19,883
Dividend declared and paid (Note 12) BEIRMEMKE (F5E12) - (28,000) (28,000)
At 31 March 2019 RZE—-NF=A=1+—H 73,613 19,220 92,833
Note: 5T
(i) Share premium (i) B E
Share premium represents the excess of the proceeds received &1 BT W EIER AR R B BT MO EER
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued. BB e
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21. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Operating leases

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and warehouse. Leases are
negotiated for terms between one to three years at fixed
rentals. The total future minimum lease payments are due as

21. KREHEETHRIE

KeHEE

REHEENFTEAEBERRLMERR BRNH
He HERBTHeEANEFHR—Z=2=F-
ARSEHENFRBNDRERWAT

follows:
2019 2018
—2-hE AN
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T
Not later than one year —FR 350 2,483
Later than one year and not —FERERFA
later than five years - 321
350 2,804
22. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 22, AT BAR R T
FINANCIAL POSITION
2019 2018
—B2-NF —T-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
5T FET T
Non-current assets kREBEE
Investment in subsidiary R B A RIMIRE 1 1
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables E b e IR 315 291
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENEIE ] 21,119 48,950
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIRSZEY 80,066 60,376
Total current assets MEEERE 101,500 109,617
Current liabilities REBE
Other payables and accruals HibEN BN ESTER 668 668
Total current liabilities mBBERE 668 668
Net current assets REBEETFE 100,832 108,949
NET ASSETS EEFE 100,833 108,950
Capital and reserves BARNHE
Share capital A% A 19 8,000 8,000
Reserves B 20 92,833 100,950
TOTAL EQUITY iR 100,833 108,950
On behalf of directors REES

Neil David HOWARD

Director

EF
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

23. BANKING FACILITIES
As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group’s bank facilities
were in the total of HK$27.1 million and HK$31.9 million

respectively.

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the bank facilities were
granted and secured by the following:

(@ a fixed and floating charge on trade receivables of a
group company;

(b) guarantees issued by a group company;

(c) pledged bank deposits; and

(d)  corporate guarantees issued by the Company.

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had unutilised

banking facilities of HK$27.1 million and HK$27.1 million
respectively.

23. BITHME

R-B-NER-B-NE=A=+—0 A%
ErRTREREH RA2r I ERBTRSSE
5T -

RIEBE-—NER_TE—N\F=ZA=1+—H T
BERITRE LA T 5 S I8 1B I -

@ —MEEEAFNEZENFTIBENET LTS
50

b) —FRSERARHEMNER:

© BHEMRITER: K

(d) ADAHEMBEER-
RIB-NEFRZZ-NF=ZA=+—8 F&

EHRBARITRED B A27T1BE S TK27.1
BEBT e
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24,

164

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24. BEAERS
(a) For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group entered (a) EZ-_Z—NWEF=A=+—"HIEFE £&
into the following transactions with related parties: SRR HEITATR S ¢
Related party relationship Type of transaction 2019 2018
EABARE T B R RHEHE —E-NEF —ZT—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHTT
A company where a key management Revenue from provision of
personnel is a close family member of an  Construction Services
executive director of the Company IRHEEEREHOE
—EAFINEEEEABRARTA
BITESFHIIR 16,163 -
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEEEASHMH
The remuneration of key management personnel, who HE_Z-NFE=ZZT—-—N\F=ZH=1T—H
are the executive directors of the Company, for the IEFE ZZ2TBAEAIRRAIHITES)
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 were as follows: K FT LD T -
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Compensation of key management FTEEEABEHH
personnel 7,118 6,950
IBI Group Holdings Limited
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25. GUARANTEES 25. ER
The Group provided guarantees in respect of the AREBG—BRITLR—HERE AT NG TEES
performance bonds issued by a bank and an insurer in favour HNBEPEINBARFREER - ZSFERE
of the customers of certain construction contracts. Details of EHEHRNFBOT ¢
these guarantees as of the end of reporting periods were as
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —Z—)\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Aggregate value of the performance MR 3 H R ELREEE
bonds issued in favour of customers 38,361 55,634
The directors are of the opinion that it is not probable that the BEERAE  RUTIURR AT AT ERERSE
bank or insurer will claim against the Group for losses under MASEZRE  REAREE TN KAIEEEET
the guarantees as it is unlikely that the Group will be unable HEEHNBHORT BHEBHNREBEUALREED
to fulfil the performance requirements of the relevant EEREFTEERT  METRAORETANEZESZH
contracts. The performance bonds are secured by the EAERESE TEEQAR R EEREER -
pledged deposits of the Group and certain performance I RZE-NEFRZF-—NF=HA=+—H"
bonds are also secured by personal guarantees of the BER AR B ERIE T EEIEE EREE -

directors and corporate guarantees of certain group
companies. Accordingly, no provision for the Group’s
obligations under the guarantees has been made as at 31
March 2019 and 2018.
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26.

27.

28.

166

CAPTIAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group did not have any
capital commitments.

CAPTIAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debts.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company only, comprising share
capital and reserves.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
in the normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk,
interest rate risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by the key management under
the policies approved by the board of directors. The Group
does not have written risk management policies. However,
the directors meet regularly to identify and evaluate risks and
to formulate strategies to manage financial risks.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its
risk management. The Group has not used any derivatives
and other instruments for hedging purposes nor does it hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are bank
balances, pledged deposits and trade and other
receivables. The Group’s bank balances and pledged
deposits are placed with reputable banks and financial
institutions. Given its high credit standing, the directors
do not expect any credit risk exposure for the Group’s
bank balances.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables. The amounts included in
trade and other receivables in the consolidated
statements of financial position are net of provisions for
doubtful receivables if any. A provision for impairment is
made where there is an identified loss event which,
based on previous experience, evidenced a reduction
in the recoverability of the cash flows. The quantitative
disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out
in Note 16.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

ECLs rates are based on actual loss experience. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the year over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables. No impairment for
trade receivables and contract assets is provided as the
amount of additional impairment measured under the
ECLs model is immaterial as at 31 March 2019.
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fEEER

AEENIESREERRITER  DHEMA
T‘m%&%ﬁ%&ﬁ\@)ﬁfﬂ&mlﬁ REE IR
TSR EEMFERIF RN B ERIFHR
ﬁ&%%ﬁ%&%% HREERRRE - i%ﬁ
HIRSEBEMRITRS T EAZEREER

$'§IE”JT*§H X EZREEHREMER
TIB o fr e PBANR R TR E 5 KA MU
K IEE?D%%EE}ZHSZJAIE%V@%(QH%) o fid i
WA HANEEEE(RERAELR B4
FEDReRETRO#E R MER) -
BlgEHRERE BEASEEHESH R
Hi EYRIEFMEEEERBRINESRERS
PAMIEE16 °

AEEZBENFRARREEBESEM
EHRMFERANEEEEEREG M
FRANBBEECHAERRERNGE -
HRAEBBENEEBEEERLELTE
BEEHEHBREAEEEN - ARNEHMR
FHENEBERE TSR AKETREFEZ
FEEBE_*/FE% °

BMEERRXRERERLCRAE - %%
LREIERE - URBAAREBEHENF
EARREBENRR - RE BN M AR E
FEW IR TR F R B R 2 B
ZR AR -_T-NF=A=1+—HBRER
HEEBREAGENFRIINRESRLTE
K B EREZRUGKIERANEER
HAERE M

1Bl Group Holdings Limited 167
2018/2019 F [ W&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_TE-NF=A=1+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

168

(a)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The deposits and other receivables are measured at
amortised cost and are considered to have low credit
risk because they are considered are in good credit
quality and no historical default noted. They are also
subject to the ECLs model and the loss allowances
limited to 12 months ECLs. After applying the expected
credit loss model, the Group concluded that impact of
ECLs for these financial instruments are insignificant as
at 31 March 2019.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities, the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rate.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=A=1+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each of the reporting period of
the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, based on
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the

Group can be required to pay.

28. MIKEREE (&)

() "BEZER(E)

TREJIRIBEARBBRSRE LA EE AT
ERNFNRF AHENNAEEITES
BAEERSREHRORREODEBER -

Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years
ENREE 1ER HiB1E HiB2E
FEE HeREAH HIRER BLR2%F BHREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER TR TR TR TEx
At 31 March 2019 R=Z-NF
=A=+-H
Trade payables BHENTE 10,716 10,716 10,716 - -
Accruals for costs of AHIRKA
contract works Bt ER 172,919 172,919 172,919 - -
Retention payables JERHRBZIE 32,436 32,436 24,804 7,542 -
Other payables and accruals £ fth &~ 2018 &
Bt ER 6,465 6,465 6,465 - -
222,536 222,536 214,994 7,542 -
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years
SHREE 1R HBiB1F HBiB2F
FEE HRensed FREK BOR2F BOR5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THTL
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
=ZRA=1+-H
Trade payables B S ERNFA 17,292 17,292 17,292 - -
Accruals for costs of AWMIRRAE
contract works [E:rE A 97,135 97,135 97,135 - -
Retention payables JEREBTIE 32,158 32,158 28,153 4,005 -
Other payables HEMAFIER
and accruals EHE-E 6,665 6,665 6,665 - -
153,250 153,250 149,245 4,005 -
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars (‘HKD”)
and Macau Patacas (“MOP”). The MOP is in turn
pegged to HKD and the exchange rate between these
currencies has remained relative stable over the past

(d) EWER

several years. Accordingly, the Group does not expect
fluctuations in the values of these currencies to have

material impact on the operations.

29. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial

assets and liabilities:

28. HiI¥EREE (&)

AEENEBEERRXZETBAET(H
JT 1) BORFIE (TP ) REAL - RPIEHE
BTTEE > MR ER ZHMEXREBER
FHARTBRE - Bt - AEEBRPZEFE
BHEEKDTEHEEERNEATE -

2. TRHIEENCHEEN S EUME

TRIREREERABENREE :

2019 2018
—E-hF T )\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT THIT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost % ## #55% 7K 51| B i) & i 2 =
Trade and other receivables E 5 N E At e W IE 40,237 -
Pledged deposits BHEPFR 16,200 -
Cash and cash equivalents Re kIRSEEY 109,361 -
Loan and receivables at amortised costs FE R BE R AR B AR B B K R FE R TR
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M WA - 42 431
Pledged deposits [ ELTEE=N - 22,637
Cash and cash equivalents RekIREEEY - 135,243
Financial liabilities = =R
Financial liabilities at amortised costs IR A SR 2 B B (&
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H M E IR 222,320 152,998

The above financial instruments are not measured at fair
value, due to their short term nature, the carrying values

approximate their fair values.
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30. SUBSIDIARIES 30. HEAT

RIE-NF=ZA=+—B ARAXENER
A(2HER/ERAF)WFBEWT

As at 31 March 2019, the particulars of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries, all of which are companies with limited
liability, are as follows:

Place and date of Attributable equity
incorporation and type of  Place of Issued and fully interest held
Name of subsidiary legal entity operations paid-up capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
SRR AR iFkRR
WEARER ERERER L BERTRAZRE B BiE FEEK
IBI Corporate BVI BVI US$100 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited 14 April 2016
Limited liability company
IBI Corporate EBRELHS HEBRAHS 100%7T REER
Holdings Limited ZE-RFNATEA
BRAR
IBI Group Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
9 May 2011
Limited liability company
IBI Group Limited Bt E0) 100787T REER
—ZE——FRANA
BRAT
IBI Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,876,544 - 100%  Provision of renovation
14 April 1997 contracting services for
Limited liability company property projects
IBI Limited Bk BE 10,876,544 78 7T REEYEIE B OB
—ANEERA+TEA HBR%
BRAT
IBI Projects Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Provision of renovation
1 April 2005 contracting services for
Limited liability company property projects
IBI Projects Limited BE BE 2B ety EEE R
“ETREMNA—H EBRE
BRRA
IBI Macau Limited Macau Special Administrative Macau Special MOP25,000 - 100%  Provision of renovation
Region Administrative contracting services for
11 April 2005 Region property projects
Limited liability company
IBI Macau Limited RPIFRITHE REIRITHE 25,000)2P9% REMEIRR 08T
“ZTRFWAT—H EBR%

BRAT
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30. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

30. B2 R (&)

Place and date of Attributable equity
incorporation and type of  Place of Issued and fully interest held
Name of subsidiary legal entity operations paid-up capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
SMATHURBBUR LU L
KEARER EEERER Fq-giik ERTRBERE = ME IEER
IBI Holdings Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of management
9 May 2011 services within the Group
Limited liability company
IBI Holdings Limited BE BE 10037T REREENTEE KRB
“Z——%7ANA
BRAT
IBI Company BVI Hong Kong USs$100 - 100%  Investment holding
Storage Limited 14 April 2016
Limited liability company
IBI Company RERLEE BE 1003E 7T AR
Storage Limited ZE-RFEATEA

31. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June

2019.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and equity of ANEE@EFRAEMBFEENEEUANLEE  BEBENMER
the Group for the last five financial years is as follows: BEZ T -

Revenue =5 593,448 580,964 615,376 661,082 539,466
Gross profits ESV 51,731 53,181 58,364 53,975 47,198
Profit before income tax M TS 8L B R ) 24,753 22,564 15,482 33,733 26,490

Profit for the year (excluding 4 A%
listing expenses) (B EmFAS) 20,852 18,175 27,130 28,842 22,383

Profit for the year F A5 ) 20,852 18,175 10,797 28,269 22,383

Total Comprehensive income  FAZE A 4258
for the year 20,852 18,175 10,797 28,269 22,380

Assets EE

Non-current assets IEREEE 419 1,316 2,331 374 470
Current assets REEE 356,479 294,281 322,822 303,369 202,186
Total assets BERBE 356,898 295,597 325,153 303,743 202,656
Liabilities =L

Current liabilities mEaE 223,391 154,942 186,673 237,673 164,855
Total liabilities B{EEE 223,391 154,942 186,673 237,673 164,855
Total equity BN 133,507 140,655 138,480 66,070 37,801
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DEFINITIONS
e

2019 AGM”
[T - hEFRRBFAE]

WAGA”
[A&A ]

“Articles”
[HEEZI2AME ]

“Audit Committee”

[EZZES

“Board”
53

“BVI”
[RERLHS]

“China” or “PRC”
[ ]

“CG Code”

[{E TRl

“Code Provision(s)”
SEUESd

“Company” or “our Company”
[EAVANCIE

“Companies Ordinance”
IPNCILESEN

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[ R ER

“Deed”
ES:

“Directors”

[EF]

“ESG Report”
[ESG &
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the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 20
September 2019
RRABERZZE-NFAAZTH (BB BTN - NEFRIAFREG

alteration and addition

B2 B sz

the memorandum and articles of association of our Company as amended from
time to time
RATBBER R R AR (ETEHERT)

the audit committee of the Company
ARRIERELZER

the board of Directors

Exg

the British Virgin Islands
RERELEHS

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan
REARANE  fiAmEMS - TEESE  RFIKAE

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
as amended from time to time

LR AP ER 14 PR (R EDR ST RID (R AEFHERT)

the code provisions set out in the CG Code
1% <7 Bl Pk <7 Al 5k XX

IBI Group Holdings Limited
IBI Group Holdings Limited

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEEDIZE 622 A RMEDD

Mr. Neil David Howard and Brilliant Blue Sky Limited, being the controlling
shareholders of our Company
Neil David Howard 5t 4 K Brilliant Blue Sky Limited ( A48 &) #) 2 B IR 58 )

the deed of non-competition
PEFERIE

the director(s) of our Company

RRRES

the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
AARNESE - HEREAWE



DEFINITIONS
e

“ESG Reporting Guide”

[ESG#H &SI ]

“Group”, “our Group”, “we”, “our”

or “us”

[R5 m ] 8 [$xAf)

“Hong Kong”
(&%)

“Listing Date”
[ ETREE]
“Listing Rules”
[ TR R

“Macau”

[DRFT ]

“Main Board”

E

“Model Code”

[1R%EsT Rl

“Nomination Committee”

[fR2RBg

“Prospectus”
[ AR EE ]

“Remuneration Committee”
[FNEZE 2 ]

the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide contained in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, as amended from time to time
ERBIK S 27 FRE (RIR - (& REIRWME RS (ETRIER])

our Company and its subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of its
subsidiaries, as the content may require) or, where the context so requires, in
respect of the period before our Company became the holding company of its
present subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of our Company and the
businesses carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their
respective predecessors
RARIREMBAR (ARG REEMN—RXZEMBRF  RIRNEFE
ME)  HANEMT - RARBIKBERAMNE R REZER AR 2 ATERE -
BEARRIMNBRAENBE AR RZEMBE R AR ENEZ K R HERME)
(=g RO TIE= /N

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBRRTTRER

14 October 2016, the date on which dealings in the Shares on the Main Board
first commence

“E-RETA+THEHE RO ERFRETIRESN RS

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

TRCEF ETRRDEETRAERT - s AR T g2

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
H DRI RITTIR

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operating in parallel with GEM of the
Stock Exchange

M PTEIENE SR S (T RIEHEMS) - B PTGEM I B 2 3F
T8k

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, as amended from time to time

LR B LM EITAESETESFRZNRETAD(EEHER])

the nomination committee of the Company

ZAY/NSIE R

the prospectus of the Company dated 29 September 2016
ARRIBHB-_Z—REFNLAZTLANERER

the remuneration committee of the Company
AAFFMEES
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DEFINITIONS
e

“Senior Management”
SREEE]

“SFC”

[EEE ]

“SFO”
[5& 75 K AR RA

“Share Option Scheme”
[ g At 2l )

“Share(s)”
[ 1%

“Shareholder(s)”
[A%ER ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 52 P |

“Takeovers Code”

¢Sl

“HK$”, “HKD”, “Hong Kong dollar(s)”
or “cent(s)”

[T =k [l

“MOP”
[DRPTH |

“US$” or “USD” or “US dollars”
EM

“g
[%]
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Rl

the senior management of the Company
ApalmBER

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
EERFLAEEBEREESY

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended and supplemented from time to time

BREDIF 571 B R F B EPD (BT EHERT R FE)

the share option scheme adopted by our Company on 20 September 2016
AARRZE—NFNLAZ+ HERAHERES

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of our Company
RARIRAT GIREEO0.01 8 LA E AR

the holder(s) of the Shares
RADFEA A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMARZMABRAR

the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs issued by the SFC,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEZHEMHHCATINE - 50 RIRODEETAD (KTRERT - F7na AEAM
7 EAEH)

Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent(s), respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EBEERRE BT B

Macau pataca, the lawful currency of Macau
BPVETE BRI

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

KXBAEEBET

per cent
ERsNs¢
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